
 

 

 

 
To: Members of the Performance 

Scrutiny Committee 
Date: 

 
15 March 2019 
 

 Direct Dial: 
 

01824 712554 

 e-mail: democratic@denbighshire.gov.uk 

 
 
Dear Councillor 
 
You are invited to attend a meeting of the PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE to be 
held at 10.00 am on THURSDAY, 21 MARCH 2019 in CONFERENCE ROOM 1A, 
COUNTY HALL, RUTHIN. 
 

Please note that a briefing session will be held for all members at 9.15am, 
immediately prior to the main meeting.  All members are asked to make every effort 
to attend this session. 

 
Yours sincerely  
 
 
G. Williams 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 
 
 
AGENDA 
 
PART 1 - THE PRESS AND PUBLIC ARE INVITED TO ATTEND THIS PART OF 
THE MEETING 
 
1 APOLOGIES   

 

2 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS   

 Members to declare any personal or prejudicial interests in any business 
identified to be considered at this meeting. 

 

3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR   

 Notice of items which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be considered at the 
meeting as a matter of urgency pursuant to Section 100B(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972. 
 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  (Pages 3 - 14) 

 To receive the minutes of the Performance Scrutiny Committee meeting held 
on 31 January 2019 (copy attached).  
 

 

5 HOUSING SERVICES  (Pages 15 - 40) 

 To consider the findings of the Wales Audit Office (WAO) Service User 
Perspective Review (copy attached) of August 2018. 

 

6 DRAFT FLEET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY  (Pages 41 - 62) 

 To consider the new draft Fleet Management Strategy (copy attached) 
including the evaluation of the use of potential alternative fuel sources. 

 

7 STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING POLICY  (Pages 63 - 108) 

 To review the Council’s Street Naming and Numbering policy (copy attached). 
 

8 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  (Pages 109 - 128) 

 To consider a report by the Scrutiny Coordinator (copy enclosed) seeking a 
review of the committee’s forward work programme and updating members 
on relevant issues. 

 

9 FEEDBACK FROM COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES   

 To receive any updates from Committee representatives on various Council 
Boards and Groups 

 

 
 
MEMBERSHIP 
 
Councillor Ellie Chard 
Councillor Ann Davies 
Councillor Rachel Flynn 
Councillor Martyn Holland 
Councillor Hugh Irving 
 

Councillor Huw Jones 
Councillor Geraint Lloyd-Williams 
Councillor Bob Murray 
Councillor Arwel Roberts 
Councillor David Williams 
 

 
COPIES TO: 
 
All Councillors for information 
Press and Libraries 
Town and Community Councils 



 

PERFORMANCE SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Minutes of a meeting of the Performance Scrutiny Committee held in Conference Room 
1a, County Hall, Ruthin on Thursday, 31 January 2019 at 10.00 am. 
 

PRESENT 
 

Councillors Ellie Chard, Ann Davies, Rachel Flynn, Hugh Irving (Vice-Chair), Huw Jones 
(Chair), Geraint Lloyd-Williams, Bob Murray, Arwel Roberts and David Williams 
 
Co-Opted members – Kathy Jones, Neil Roberts and David Lloyd for business item 5. 
 
Lead Members, Councillors Brian Jones, Huw Hilditch-Roberts and Richard Mainon 
attended at the Committee’s request. 
 
Observers – Councillors Meirick Lloyd Davies, Graham Timms and Emrys Wynne. 
 

ALSO PRESENT 
 

Chief Executive (JG), Head of Education & Children Services (KE), Senior School 
Improvement Officer – Secondary (JM), Head of Customers, Communications & 
Marketing (LG), Principal Librarian (BH), Head of Highways & Environmental Services 
(TW), Waste & Recycling Manager (TD), Scrutiny Co-ordinator (RE) and Committee 
Administrator (SJ) 
 
GwE Representative -  Paul Matthew-Jones  
 

 
1 APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Martyn Holland 
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Personal declarations of interest were received for agenda item 5, Verified 
External Examinations and Teacher Assessments from Councillors: 

 Huw Jones, governor at Ysgol Carrog and Ysgol Caer Drewyn; 

 Ellie Chard, governor at Ysgol Tir Morfa; 

 Hugh Irving, governor at Prestatyn High School; 

 Arwel Roberts, governor at Ysgol y Castell & Ysgol Dewi Sant; 

 David Williams as a parent of a child in a Denbighshire school; 

 Geraint LLoyd-Williams, governor at St Brigid’s. 

 Huw Hilditch-Roberts as a governor at Ysgol Brynhyfryd and Parent of a 
child in a Denbighshire school. 

 
Together with: 

 Co-opted member Neil Chambers Roberts, governor at Ysgol y Parc and 
Ysgol Cefn Meiriadog; 

 Co-opted member David James Lloyd, governor as Ysgol Y Llys, 
Prestatyn 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



 
3 URGENT MATTERS AS AGREED BY THE CHAIR  

 
No urgent matters were raised. 
 

4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Performance Scrutiny Committee held on 29 
November 2018 were submitted. 
 
Accuracy: 
 
Members noted that it was Co-opted member Neil Roberts that declared a personal 
interest as a school governor of Ysgol Y Parc. 
 
Matters Arising: 
 
Agenda item 5 – Provisional External Examinations and Teacher Assessments – 
Page 12 – The Chair confirmed a letter had been sent to Qualifications Wales 
highlighting the Committee’s concerns. The Chair confirmed a response had been 
received from the Chief Executive of Qualifications Wales. 
 
The Lead Member for Education, Children and Young People informed members 
he had received a response from Kirsty Williams AM, Cabinet Secretary for 
Education responding to the concerns of the Committee. Councillor Hilditch-Roberts 
confirmed the importance to receive the answers to concerns of the Committee for 
the children within Denbighshire. 
 
RESOLVED that, subject to the above, the minutes of the Performance Scrutiny 
Committee meeting held on 29 November 2018 be received and approved as a 
correct record. 
   

5 VERIFIED EXTERNAL EXAMINATION RESULTS AND TEACHER 
ASSESSMENTS  
 
The Lead Member for Education, Children and Young People introduced the joint 
report by the Principal Education Manager and GwE Secondary Lead (previously 
circulated) which presented the Committee with the verified information on the 
performance of Denbighshire’s secondary school pupils at Key Stage 4 (KS4)  and 
post 16 examinations in the summer of 2018.   
 
Following the Committee’s consideration of the provisional examination results at its 
November 2018 meeting the Chair had written to the Chief Executive of 
Qualifications Wales registering members’ concerns on the significant increase in 
threshold to attain a ‘C’ grade in the summer 2018 GCSE examinations, particularly 
in relation to the English examination, and its detrimental impact on students.  A 
copy of the letter of response received from the Chief Executive of Qualifications 
Wales was shared with the Committee.  In his letter the Chief Executive stated that 
similar concerns had been raised by GwE and as a result a review of grading’s had 
been instigated.  This review had concluded that “the grade boundary had been 

Page 4



moved appropriately” and therefore no further action was required.  Members were 
advised by the Lead Member that Education officers and Education portfolio 
holders received a similar response from the Chief Executive of Qualifications 
Wales, consequently a meeting had been convened for mid-February between 
North Wales Directors of Education, Education portfolio holders, GwE and 
Qualifications Wales’ Chief Executive to discuss future external examination 
grading’s with a view to ensuring that future students would not suffer such volatility 
in grade boundaries.  Education practitioners were resigned to the fact that 
Qualifications Wales would not instigate a further review of the 2018 grading’s, 
therefore they were determined that future examinations should not be subject to 
such significant volatility in grade boundaries.   The Lead Member agreed with 
Committee members’ views that there was no recognition from Qualifications Wales 
of the impact of its decision to apply such a considerable increase in the ‘C’ grade 
boundary on the lives and career prospects of a significant number of individual 
students.   
 
The Head of Education and Children’s Services, the Principal Education Manager 
and GwE’s Secondary Lead for Denbighshire: 

 emphasised both officers and elected members’ disappointment that the 
verified results for 2018 had not changed despite their collective and 
concerted effort across the region in discussing the above concerns with 
representatives from Qualifications Wales, Welsh Joint Education Committee 
(WJEC), Welsh Government (WG) etc. (a copy of a letter from the WG’s 
Cabinet Secretary for Education to the Lead Member had been circulated to 
Committee members for information).  Whilst WJEC representatives had met 
with Education officials, EAS officers and portfolio holders in the South East 
Wales region (the EAS region) to discuss similar concerns the challenge was 
being led by North Wales education leaders (the GwE region); 

 advised that, due to their concerns, they were currently examining the 
provisions of the Qualifications Wales Act 2015 in relation to the WJEC’s 
monopoly over external examinations in Wales, to see whether the county’s 
schools could enter students for some examinations administered by other 
reputable examination boards.  It was acknowledged that Welsh-medium 
examinations would only be administered by the WJEC; and 

 confirmed that if the ‘C’ grade boundary for the English examination in the 
summer of 2018 would have been set at the same level as the previous year 
a further 107 pupils in Denbighshire’s schools, and 700 across North Wales, 
would have attained a grade ‘C’  

 
Responding to members’ questions the Lead Member, Education and GwE officers: 

 confirmed that the gap in performance between boys and girls had generally 
increased in 2018, with more girls gaining Level 2 inclusive than boys.  Year 
on year comparison at present was not that meaningful due to changes in 
grade boundaries and the number of subjects entered for examination; 

 advised that WJEC examinations were graded form ‘A’ to ‘E’ whilst English 
Examination Boards’ examinations were graded numerically.  Nevertheless 
headteachers had a moral duty to select the best examinations for their 
pupils, hence the reason why the Service was examining the provisions of 
the 2015 Act to explore whether the county’s pupils could sit exams 
administered by other Examination Boards.  They were of the view that 

Page 5



pressure needed to be exerted on the WJEC to set examinations that met 
students’ needs; 

 confirmed that there was a UK-wide agreement in place specifying that 
English and Mathematics examinations would take place on the same day 
and at the same time throughout the UK, therefore dual entry for these 
subjects was not possible; 

 advised that currently there was a significant level of uncertainty in the 
county’s secondary schools as a result of last summer’s grade boundary 
increases.  It had shaken Departmental Heads and teachers’ confidence in 
their abilities to deliver for their students.  Whilst Education Service officers 
had every confidence in their abilities their trust and confidence in the WJEC 
and Qualifications Wales had been severely dented.  Education officials 
were now seeking assurances for the future, particularly in view of the 
imminent changes to the Science examination, and further reforms to the 
curriculum; 

 confirmed that every teacher was aware of what the Council and GwE were 
doing to support them in light of the disappointment encountered with some 
of the 2018 GCSE results.  All headteachers were working hard to support 
disappointed staff and pupils and making every effort to increase their 
confidence levels, whilst GwE were arranging training events specifically to 
support them going forward;   

 confirmed that GwE’s concerns mirrored those of the Council’s Education 
Service staff, they were firmly of the view that grade boundaries should not 
be subject to the level of volatility experienced in 2018.  GwE tracked the 
performance of pupils across the region, presently the performance of 677 
pupils in Denbighshire were being tracked and monitored against those in 
other local authority areas; 

 advised that whilst the WG had given the Welsh Baccalaureate qualification 
a high profile not all students viewed it as a high priority as not all universities 
recognised it as a qualification, therefore some students would rather study 3 
or 4 ‘A’ Levels with a view to securing entry to the university of their choice; 

 confirmed that the Authority now had a greater understanding of the holistic 
needs of free school meal (FSM) pupils.  Consequently this had resulted in a 
significant improvement in the L2 inclusive performance against this indicator 
in 2018; 

 confirmed that the Council was aware of the high rate of short-term 
exclusions in the County’s secondary schools (illustrated in Appendix 3 to 
the report).  The Authority worked closely with all schools to monitor the 
situation, offer appropriate intervention services, and ensure that the policy 
was applied in a consistent manner across all schools.  Officers were 
confident that schools were applying the policy correctly and as a result 
knew the whereabouts of each pupil during the school day.  A significant 
number of pupils excluded from the county’s schools on a short-term basis 
were identified as having special or additional needs.  The short-term 
exclusion period provided time for appropriate support and intervention to be 
secured to support the pupil’s education going forward.  Appropriate use of 
short-term exclusions was aimed at reducing the number of permanent 
exclusions through the provision of appropriate intervention services at a 
very early stage.  The county’s low number of permanent exclusions seemed 
to indicate that this approach was effective; 

Page 6



 reassured members that the Council emphasised to schools that exclusion 
data needed to accurately record the reasons why a pupil was being 
excluded in order that appropriate intervention support was put in place.  A 
number of those excluded had significant behavioural problems.  Work was 
currently underway to explore the possibility of accessing TRAC funding to 
establish on-site support provision for excluded pupils; 

 informed members that school exclusion data was collated on a monthly 
basis and available to all schools for comparison purposes; 

 emphasised that the profiles of schools were changing,.  Whilst 
acknowledging that short-term exclusion rates were too high very complex 
issues usually led to the decision to exclude;  

 advised that it was important that school behavioural policies and data were 
correct, and that no illegal exclusions were occurring.  The WG was currently 
looking at standardising exclusion policies across Wales; 

 advised that there was generally a correlation between 
attendance/absenteeism figures (detailed in Appendix 4 to the report) and 
FSM figures.   Blessed Edward Jones High School had the highest number 
of FSM pupils in North Wales due to the fact that a high proportion of its 
pupils lived in high deprivation areas.  Despite high levels of support from the 
Council’s Education Service there had been significant leadership issues at 
the school, of which the Diocese was aware, which had resulted in 
absenteeism and performance not being challenged and addressed.  Its 
main feeder school Ysgol Mair, did not suffer similar problems, therefore it 
was hoped that the new all through school, Christ the Word, which would 
replace both Ysgol Mair and Blessed Edward Jones High School in 
September 2019 would address the problems at the current secondary 
school and demonstrate continued improvement throughout.  The recent 
appointment of a Headteacher for the new school, who would probably take 
up the post around Easter, should help deliver the expected improvements.  
Education Service staff were confident that all aspects of performance and 
school life would improve once the new school opened, as this had taken 
place at Rhyl High School following the delivery of the new school.  Both 
schools served an area of high deprivation and had experienced similar 
problems; 

 reassured the Committee that as both Education and Children’s Services 
were served by the same Head of Service both services’ work integrated 
well.  Consequently officers from both services knew exactly which children 
and families required their intervention and support; 

 advised that the roles and responsibilities of school governors were very 
wide and confirmed that they had concerns that not all governors at present 
had the skills to undertake the role.  The Council had very limited powers in 
respect of school governing bodies despite the fact that the Governing Body 
was ultimately responsible for running the school and challenging 
performance etc.  Under the School Standards Framework the local 
education authority’s (LEA) intervention powers were limited.  The LEA had 
no powers in relation to the Chair of the Governing Body, its powers were 
limited to the LEA representatives on a Governing Body.  Denbighshire had 
a School Governors Association, which met on a quarterly basis, but 
attendance levels at its meeting was not very high.  Nevertheless there were 
some excellent school governors on school governing bodies who did 

Page 7



provide effective, constructive challenge.  WG had indicated its desire to 
review school governing bodies, but the proposals were not forthcoming.  
Directors of Education felt that any such review should be radical; 

 explained the difference between setting local targets, which was undertaken 
by the schools at a local level, and pupil tracking which was undertaken at a 
county and regional level; 

 advised that Prestatyn High School had adopted a similar approach to the 
one used by Ysgol Brynhyfryd in recent years with a view to improving 
performance.  This system which included strong, robust leadership, 
effective challenge and continual tracking of pupil performance had proved 
extremely effective at Ysgol Brynhyfryd and despite the different FSM profile 
of Prestatyn High School officers were confident that similar improvements 
would be achieved; 

 confirmed that pupils’ performance in GCSE Welsh as a first language 
remained consistently high, with on average more pupils sitting the first 
language Welsh examination in the county than anywhere else in Wales; 

 advised that although some vocational type courses were delivered in the 
county’s schools which enabled pupils to gain vocational qualifications, these 
courses were no longer delivered to the same extent as some years ago due 
to the requirement for schools to focus on more academic subjects.  
Generally, vocational courses benefited from being delivered at a further 
education establishment due to the availability of the required specialist 
equipment to deliver the courses. It was confirmed that the Council had very 
strong relationships with the local further education colleges in relation to 
delivering vocational education; 

 
The Chair during his summing-up congratulated schools on their very good 
performance overall in the 2018 external examinations, drawing particular attention 
to the number of secondary school pupils’ achievements in being awarded a 
‘distinction’ in vocational examinations.  He also reiterated his disappointment with 
Qualifications Wales and other organisations’ responses to the concerns raised in 
relation to the significant increase in the ‘C’ grade threshold for English and other 
summer 2018 GCSE examinations.  The Chair also agreed to discuss with the 
Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group whether matters relating to the 
management of school governing bodies merited being considered by Scrutiny in 
the near future. 
 
Prior to the conclusion of the discussion the Catholic Church’s Co-opted Education 
Scrutiny member requested that her gratitude to Denbighshire County Council 
officers for their assistance in delivering the Christ the Word School project and to 
appoint the new Headteacher be recorded. 
 
The Committee: 
 
RESOLVED: - subject to the above observations – 

(i) to acknowledge the performance of the County’s schools in the 2018 
external examinations and to congratulate the pupils on their 
achievement; 

(ii) to receive and agree the areas for improvement as outlined in the 
report;  

Page 8



(iii)that the Chair on behalf of the Committee write again to the Chief 
Executive of Qualifications Wales emphasising members’ 
continuing concerns relating to the significant increase in the ‘C’ 
grade threshold for the summer 2018 GCSE examinations and its 
consequential impact on pupils, their potential career prospects, 
Education Service and school staff, and schools in general; and  

(iv) that a copy of the above letter be sent to all North Wales Assembly 
Members, and the local press and media. 

 
At this juncture (11.30 a.m.), there was a 10 minute break. 
  
The meeting reconvened at 11.40 a.m. 
 
6 LIBRARY STANDARDS  

 
The Lead Member for Developing Community Infrastructure introduced the 
Principal Librarian’s report on the Library Service’s performance against the Sixth 
Framework of Welsh Public Library Standards 2017-20 (previously circulated).  Also 
outlined in the report was the Service’s progress in developing libraries throughout 
the county as community hubs.  
 
Chair and members congratulated the Service on their excellent performance in 
delivering against the majority of Core Entitlements and Quality Indicators (QI), as 
detailed in the Welsh Government’s (WG) Museums, Archives and Libraries 
Division’s (MaLD) Annual Assessment report (attached as Appendix A to the 
report).  They also commended the Council on the range of services and events 
offered in libraries across the county for people of all ages, which were greatly 
valued by residents. 
 
Responding to members’ questions the Lead Member, Head of Communications, 
Customers and Marketing, and the Principal Librarian: 

 confirmed that, similar to other services, the Library Service’s budget had 
been reduced and as a consequence it had been unable to meet QI9 (spend 
per 1,000 population on reading materials) of the Welsh Public Library 
Standards; 

 advised that QI13 (staffing levels and qualifications) had only been partially 
met because staff in the County’s libraries delivered a range of library and 
One Stop Shop services.  Whilst not all these staff were qualified librarians 
the range of services delivered at the county’s libraries required a wide range 
of skills and officers were confident that the Service’s staff had the 
appropriate skills set to deliver all these services.  The Head of Service 
informed the Committee that they were currently exploring options on how to 
develop a qualification for Library Service staff which could support career 
development within the Service.  Members were also advised that in recent 
years more male applicants were applying for posts in the Service, this had 
not been the case historically; 

 confirmed that library staff were trained and up-skilled on a regular basis.  In 
the near future staff would be trained on the new Library Management 
System (LMS) and Customer Relationship Management (CRM) system.  

Page 9



Two staff conferences per year were held which all Library Service staff 
attended; 

 advised that there were five professional librarian posts within the Service in 
Denbighshire; 

 advised that Llandrillo College was delivering levels 3 and 7 courses in 
library skills during the current academic year; 

 confirmed that the Council’s Library Service had utilised young volunteers for 
a number of years, this scheme was aimed at developing young people’s 
skills.  Volunteers were used to complement and support service delivery, 
they were not expected to replace remunerated Library Service staff.  The 
Council acknowledged that people of all ages were keen to dedicate some of 
their time to a volunteering role, with a number wanting to deliver voluntary 
services in libraries.  As a result the Council was currently developing a 
Volunteering Strategy and a Workforce Development Strategy, with a view to 
supporting volunteers to develop their skills whilst not compromising the role 
of trained, remunerated staff.  The aim of the Volunteering Strategy would be 
to add value to services and not to save money; 

 advised that the issue of applying financial penalties for late returned books 
was being examined.  If the practice was to be discontinued it would impact 
on the Service’s income, therefore potential new income generation 
schemes would need to be explored.  In addition, in order to secure the 
return of outstanding loaned reading materials an amnesty of some sort 
would need to be facilitated; 

 confirmed that the Service had an active marketing campaign for its service 
on a number of media platforms, including social media; 

 advised that all members and residents had an important role to play to 
safeguard the long-term sustainability of the county’s libraries, by ensuring 
they were used on a regular basis and promoting their services to residents; 

 advised that due to the costs associated with restoring old books to a 
suitable condition to enable them to be sold to residents for a discounted 
price this work was now undertaken by a private company, as it gave the 
Service an opportunity to generate a small income.  A small auction of 
surplus to requirements reading materials had recently been held at Rhyl 
Library, the financial benefits of this auction were currently being evaluated; 
and  

 confirmed that a new Library Strategy for the county was currently being 
drawn-up, the focus of which would be around supporting community 
resilience   

 
Members referred to the excellent working relationship that existed between 
Rhuddlan Town Council and the staff at Rhuddlan Library which was delivering 
much valued services at the local library which was a vibrant hub for the 
community, particular reference was made to the dementia activities held there.  A 
query was raised whether more tourist information services could be delivered from 
the town’s library and the local member was advised to speak to the Council’s 
Team Leader:  Tourism, Marketing and Events.   
 
At the conclusion of the discussion the Committee: 
 
RESOLVED: - subject to the above observations –  

Page 10



(i) to commend the Library Service on its performance against the Sixth 
Framework of the Welsh Public Library Standards; and 

(ii) that a report on the Service’s performance against the Welsh Public 
Library Service Standards 2018-19 along with the draft new Library 
Service Strategy be presentenced to the Committee at its meeting in 
November 2019  

 
7 WAO NATIONAL REPORT ON WASTE MANAGEMENT IN WALES  

 
The Lead Member for Highways, Planning and Sustainable Travel introduced the 
Waste and Recycling Manager and Head of Highways and Environment’s joint 
report (previously circulated) which presented the Committee with the Wales Audit 
Office’s (WAO) national report on Waste Management in Wales:  Municipal 
Recycling (Appendix 1 to the report).   During his introduction the Lead Member 
advised that the WAO expected greater collaboration between Welsh Government 
(WG) and local authorities with a view to increasing recycling rates and 
consequently reducing the amount of waste sent to landfill.  The WAO had made 
four recommendations, the majority of which were directed at WG.  However, the 
Council had considered all four recommendations and its observations and 
responses to each of them was contained in the covering report. 
 
Responding to members’ questions the Lead Member and officers advised that: 

 the Council welcomed the opportunity to support Welsh Government (WG) to 
better understand the variations in costs between local authorities in respect 
of waste management services; 

 the report’s recommendations supported the Council’s proposed new waste 
recycling model recently approved by Cabinet; 

 the UK Government was expected to consult in the near future on reforming 
the UK packaging producer responsibility system.  Under the proposed new 
system full costs of managing packaging waste would be placed on those 
businesses who used them with a view to them being able to influence their 
design; 

 the Government was currently examining whether packaging/labelling 
required amending in order to provide clarity to the general public on which 
materials were recyclable and which were not; 

 assisted collection arrangements would continue to operate as present once 
the Council’s new waste recycling model came into operation.  However, the 
Service would be reviewing this service in the near future to ensure that it 
was only those residents who required an assisted services that were 
receiving it; 

 in the past Denbighshire had been reluctant to adopt the WG’s blueprint 
model for recycling.  However, things had changed over time and moving to 
the WG’s blueprint model within the next few years would now benefit 
Denbighshire and its residents due to the financial implications of not 
meeting WG targets.  Whilst adopting the WG blueprint model for recycling 
was not a statutory requirement the financial incentives currently on offer 
made it worthwhile for the Council to adopt this model for the future; 

 the Council agreed with the WAO’s recommendation in relation to improving 
cost and performance benchmarking methods in order to ensure that a 
consistent approach was used for data analysis and comparing purposes; 

Page 11



 the proposed new recycling model would be far more robust against market 
forces than the current recycling system.  Whilst market forces would always 
be a factor the new model would provide added resilience to the Council’s 
service; 

 initially the Council proposed to undertake a review of its waste management 
services at least once in any seven year period, which coincided with the 
average lifespan of refuse vehicles.  However, WG and UK Government 
strategies in relation to waste management were changing on a regular basis 
at present i.e. consultations were expected imminently on a deposit and 
return scheme, reforming packaging producer responsibility etc.  Dependent 
upon the results of these consultations waste management focus and 
priorities may change;  

 Communities Scrutiny Committee was examining matters relating to the 
proposed new Waste Recycling Service design, including the proposed 
education and communications strategy being drawn up ahead of its 
introduction; 

 it was manufacturers and central government who had the powers to 
determine the types of containers and packaging that were produced and 
sold, the local authority’s responsibilities centred on waste management and 
the ethical disposal of waste products.  Both the manufacturers and the 
government were currently looking at the materials used to make packaging 
products with a view to reducing the amount of non-recyclable products 
manufactured.  One proposal was to levy higher taxes on non-recyclable 
packaging items;     

 the Council did continue to provide a composting bin to residents upon 
request for a subsidised price; 

 the Council’s Streetscene and ground maintenance staff composted all 
green waste collected as part of their work; and 

 whilst utilising large diesel vehicles to collect waste etc. did have an impact 
on the Council’s carbon footprint, incinerating waste and inappropriate 
disposal of waste materials also had a detrimental effect on the environment 
and on the Council’s performance in relation to the Carbon Index  

 
At the conclusion of the discussion the Committee was of the view that the 
proposed new recycling model was the way forward for the Council and the local 
environment, however it was crucial that the Business Plan for the proposed new 
service was robust and deliverable.  Members: 
 
RESOLVED: having considered the findings of the Wales Audit Office report 
on Waste Management in Wales:  Municipal Recycling to endorse the 
Council’s Waste and Recycling Service’s response to address the issues 
raised in the report. 
 

8 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME  
 
The Scrutiny Co-ordinator introduced the report (previously circulated) seeking 
Members’ review of the Committee’s work programme and providing an update on 
relevant issues. 
 

Page 12



A copy of the “Member’s proposal form” had been included in Appendix 2. The 
Scrutiny Co-ordinator requested that any proposals be submitted to herself. The 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme had been included as Appendix 3, the table 
summarising recent Committee resolutions, advising on progress with their 
implementation, had been attached as Appendix 4. 
 
The date of the next meeting was confirmed, it was explained the proposed agenda 
item on Dolwen Residential Care Home had not progress sufficiently to enable it to 
be presented to the Committee at the March meeting and would be rescheduled for 
a future date.  
 
The Scrutiny Co-ordinator confirmed the Chairs and Vice Chairs Group, where due 
to meet that afternoon, further reports may be added to the forward work 
programme following debate.  
 
A list of the Committee’s representatives on the Service Challenge Groups along 
with the schedule of Group meetings for 2018-19 had been included in the 
“Information Brief” document for members’ information. Councillor Geraint Lloyd –
Williams notified the Committee he was unable to attend the upcoming Service 
Challenge group he represent the committee on. Following discussion the Chair 
agreed to attend the meeting on behalf on the Performance Scrutiny committee.  
  
RESOLVED, that subject to the above, the Forward Work Programme be 
approved. 
 

9 FEEDBACK FROM COMMITTEE REPRESENTATIVES  
 
Councillor Rachel Flynn and Ann Davies informed members they had attended the 
Community Support Services Performance Challenge meeting. It was stressed how 
informative and interesting the meeting had been.  A copy of the notes from that 
Service Challenge meeting and other recent Service Challenge meetings had been 
circulated to members as part of the ‘Information Brief’ document. 
 
 

The meeting concluded at 13:10 p.m. 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



Report to:   Performance Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  21st March 2019 
 
Lead Member/Officer: Lead Member for Housing, Regeneration and the 

Environment/ 
Lead Officer Community Housing 

 
Report Authors:  Lead Officer Community Housing/ 

Lead Officer Corporate Property and Housing Stock 
 
Title:    Wales Audit Office Service User Perspective Review  
 
 

 
 
1. What is the report about? 

 
This report is in response to the findings of the Wales Audit Office (WAO) Service 
User Perspective Review of August 2018. 

 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 
 

To outline how the service is addressing the two proposals for improvement outlined 
in the WAO Service User Perspective Review – the Welsh Quality Housing Standard 
(Sept. 2018) in relation to working with tenants: 

 
To help those experiencing damp and homes that are not adequately heated, fuel 
efficient, or well insulated; and 
 
To review the long-term impact of the ending of the resident warden service from 
its sheltered housing schemes 

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 

  
That the Committee considers the contents of this report and comments accordingly. 

 
4. Report details 

 
The WAO audit report includes feedback from doorstep interviews with 122 of our 
tenants out of our total stock of 3,385 homes. The recommendations in the report result 
from feedback given to the WAO during these doorstep interviews. 
 
The two proposals for improvement were: 

 
4.1 To help those experiencing damp and homes that are not adequately heated, 

fuel efficient, or well insulated 
Section 22 of the WAO report makes reference to feedback from tenants that 23% 
feel that they have “damp and condensation” issues. These cases were not 
inspected or investigated any further and this is acknowledged in the report. 

Page 15

Agenda Item 5



 
There is a distinction between the main causes of damp and condensation. Damp is 
generally caused by moisture penetration into a building and can be remedied by 
undertaking repairs or damp proofing to prevent moisture entering the building 
structure. Condensation, whilst this can be linked to heating and insulation, can also 
be due to conditions inside the home and requires the occupier to manage heating 
and ventilation within their home. 
 
For context, a survey of 2,000 occupiers across all housing tenures undertaken by 
Ipsos MORI for the Energy Saving Trust in 2014 reported that 37% of occupiers had 
experienced condensation.  

 
Although neighbouring authorities Wrexham (4%) and Flintshire (7%) reported much 
lower issues with condensation compared to our 27%, the total number of people 
interviewed was significantly smaller in proportion to Denbighshire - 84 tenants out of 
11,207 in Wrexham and 96 out of 7,167 in Flintshire. Ynys Môn however reported 
37% who experienced damp and condensation and this was with a similar sample 
size to Denbighshire (119 out of 3,792) 

 
The proposal includes the phrase “Homes that are not adequately heated” and this 
implies that there are issues with the condition and facilities in our homes however 
we know that the council achieved the Welsh Housing Quality Standard in 2014 and 
overall satisfaction with our homes remains high.  
 
Inadequate heating of a home can be caused by inefficient or intermittent use of the 
heating system by the occupiers and this can also be linked to affordability through 
fuel poverty.  
 
Energy Efficiency  
In 2017/18 a full stock condition survey has been carried out and we have 
information on the energy performance of 80% of council owned homes. 
 
For the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS), properties are required to achieve 
a “D” rating. The Councils Corporate Plan is currently for all council homes to achieve 
“C” rating by 2022. 

  
We have developed a programme to ensure our homes are warm and energy 
efficient and this is detailed in Appendix 1. 
 

 Advice and Support 
In September 2018 we partnered with Citizens Advice Denbighshire (CAD) to provide 
direct advice through a dedicated advisor to support council tenants with fuel poverty 
and damp and condensation issues. In addition the specialist advisor has been able 
to provide feedback to us on customer behaviour with regards to heating their 
homes. 
 
To date, 205 tenants have gained additional income and 30 tenants have been 
removed from fuel poverty. 
 

Page 16



We published a guide to avoiding condensation in our Autumn 2018 newsletter which 
was sent to the home of every council tenant. We have produced this as a leaflet 
(appendix 2) that is made available to tenants experiencing condensation and the 
issues discussed with them. We are looking to develop a short film for social media 
as this is likely to be more effective channel to highlight condensation. 
 
Whilst delivering a session for Housing and Maintenance staff on condensation we 
took the opportunity to remind staff how to support tenants on the effective use of 
storage heaters. Electric heating tends to be unpopular however if used correctly 
storage heaters can provide a more constant heat throughout the day and night 
which can particularly benefit older people who may be at home for longer periods. 
We have therefore asked staff to discuss this with tenants when visiting homes with 
electric heating and we have produced a leaflet on the effective use of storage 
heaters.   
 
STAR (Survey of Tenants and Residents) 
Community Housing carries out a survey of all our Tenants and Residents every 2 
years. The feedback from this survey informs our plans and helps identify areas we 
need to improve. 
The results in 2017 were good and we are pleased that the feedback from the latest 
returns in January 2019 continue to improve. Headlines are included in appendix 3. 

 
4.2  To review the long-term impact of the ending of the resident warden service 

from its sheltered housing schemes 
 

Around a third of Denbighshire Housing stock is designated for older people aged 
over 55.  We have a number of schemes that previously had a residential warden on 
site. The role was very generic and required some core rent funding but also some 
Supporting People funding due to an element of the role that was deemed to provide 
care and support albeit at a very low level.  
 
The review in 2014 that led to the change concluded that resources could be better 
deployed in providing specialist support that individuals need regardless of their 
housing tenure. 
 
This has led to a legacy that some residents feel they lost the reassurance that the 
on-site warden provided and has led to claims that residents can become more 
isolated and excluded and the risk that this brings. 
 
The Support Independent Living Service (SIL) was established to help tenants 
through the change and provide ongoing low level support where needed. These 
cases were reviewed in 2017 and a report is attached in appendix 4. 
 
A review has been carried out by Community Housing appendix 5 which has 
concluded that a return to the previous resident warden role is not feasible. This is 
due to the lack of support based funding and also that a warden role provides generic 
support regardless of need. It could be argued that this has the potential to increase 
isolation as residents rely on the daily contact and not seek other social interaction 
opportunities. 

 

Page 17



The centres at the traditional “sheltered” schemes are vibrant communal places 
where a number of activities are held including health and well-being activities such 
as Arm Chair exercises. Some are arranged by the Housing team and some are 
arranged by the residents group. The existence of these residents groups also 
provides opportunities for residents to be involved and active.  
 

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 
Housing and Resilient Communities are corporate priorities  

  
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
  

The cost to improve the energy performance of council homes will be contained 
within the Housing Revenue Account (HRA). 

 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment?  

 
An impact assessment was not required for this report as no changes are proposed 

 
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
  

This report provide a response to feedback from Community Housing tenants 
obtained during the Wales Audit Office site visits. 
  

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
  
The costs associated with services and maintenance for council housing are contained 
within the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan. The plan for 2019/20 was 
approved by Cabinet in January 2019. 

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 

The risk are that we fail to implement the proposals for improvement. This report 
outlines our response.  

 
11. Power to make the Decision 

 
11.1 Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000 

 
11.2 Section 7.4.2(b) details Scrutiny’s powers with respect of policy objectives, 

performance targets and/or particular service areas.  
 
Contact Officer: 
Lead Officer – Community Housing 
Tel:  01824 712931 

Page 18



APPENDIX 1 
 
Denbighshire Housing – SAP/EPC Data Analysis - Current Status & 
Improvement Proposal 
 

 The corporate target is to reach a C69 by 2022 for all council housing 
 

 Current SAP data from Stock Condition Survey & Previous Records confirms the following: 

 

SAP Band Total 

C 1119 

D 1271 

E 461 

F 23 

G 17 

Total 2891 

  
 842 properties in SAP band D range between D65 – D68; 

 490 properties currently have no energy data available and are assumed to be below D 65; 
 

Anticipated Investment Requirements/Measures Per SAP Band to Meet 

DCC’s Corporate Target of C69 SAP Rating (Exceeds WHQS D65 SAP Rating) 

G Rated to C (17 Properties, including properties where EPC data as well as SAP is known)  

All but 2 of the current G rated properties are tenant refusals from previous programmes of work, 

therefore the majority of these properties have older inefficient heating systems and often lack 

insulation measures.  

Heating upgrades including a mixture of gas/electric - £85K 

Total for cavity wall insulation/loft (where applicable) - £40K (potential for ECO funding) 

Potential PV/solar water heating (where off gas to 6 no properties) - £50K 

Windows/doors to 1 Property - £5000 

Total investment - £180K 

 

F Rated to C – (23 properties) 

The majority of these properties are off gas and/or have solid walls. However 6 of 23 are on gas and 

will achieve a C69 with a heating upgrade and improved insulation. The remaining properties have 

older type storage heaters. Upgrading these to high heat retention radiators in the remaining 

properties will increase the EPC rating significantly, however these properties may only ever reach a 

D rating unless floor insulation is also specified. This type of work could not be completed while the 

properties are tenanted. 

6 Gas upgrades @ £3500 per property - £21K 

Page 19



17 High Heat Retention upgrades @ £5000 per property -£85k 

17 External wall insulation upgrades @ £10,000 per property - £170K 

Total Investment - £276K 

E Rated to C – (461 properties)  

This group of properties presents a number of challenges as no one single measure or upgrade will 

increase the EPC to a C.  There are however 112 properties within this group of properties which are 

on gas but which appear to lack insulation. A thorough desktop analysis of these properties will need 

to be completed to identify which properties can be insulated via traditional means.  As these 

properties are currently a band E, the council may be able to successfully acquire ECO funding to 

upgrade these properties, therefore costs could be minimal. 

Improving the energy efficiency of the remaining 349 properties within this group will require more 

thought and significantly more investment, however the main improvements here will be upgrading 

the existing heating, installing External Wall Insulation (EWI) and installing solar PV where applicable. 

Estimated Budget Requirement: 

Solar PV offers the greatest gain (once the other measures have been installed). The cost to install 

solar will be in the region of £5000 for a 2.5KW system per property. However it should be noted 

that some properties may not be suitable for PV due to the orientation of the property. 

Indicative cost - £520K 

High Heat Retention Heating upgrade 

The majority of these properties have older Economy 7 heating systems or have existing solid fuel 

fires, upgrading these to Quantum type radiators (HHR) will increase the SAP rating considerably in 

this band of property. Consideration will also need to be made to the existing hot water tanks as 

these may well require upgrading to become compatible and to achieve the highest SAP score. 

Although HHR radiators are recognised in SAP  

Indicative cost - £625K 

EWI – The majority of our solid wall housing stock sit in this SAP bracket, therefore installing EWI will 

significantly raise the SAP rating of these properties, the cost however is considerable. 

Indicative cost - 100 properties@ £10k- £1M (based on an average cost for a 3 sided house)  

Total Investment - £2.1M 

 

D Rated to C (1271 properties, combing SAP/EPC data) 

A large proportion of the housing stock fall into this category, as previously reported, a programme 

of minor measures to circa 40% of these properties will be required to increase their SAP rating to a 

C69, Including CWI/loft and energy efficient lighting. Some may only require resurveying to capture a 

revised score post improvement. Indicative costs associated with this work are as follows: 

Energy efficient lighting @ £40 per property - £22K 

Loft tops up (150mm to 270mm) @ £350 per property -£175K 

Page 20



Additional Insulated 80mm hot water jackets @ £12 per property - £7K 

Total Investment - £204K (minor measures) 

This still leaves 700 properties with a SAP score ranging between 55 – 65. 

Significant investment will be required to upgrade these to a C69 as minor measures will not provide 

enough of an increase in SAP. Reviewing the properties that fall into this category also confirm that 

the existing heating systems are either Economy 7 or solid fuel systems. 

Similarly to band E, the biggest improvement will be gained by introducing improved heating 

systems and in some cases the introduction of solar PV/water heating: 

High Heat Retention – 700 @ £5k per property - £3.5M 

Solar PV to 300 properties* @ £5K per property (allowing for 50%) - £1.5M  

* additional SAP points will be gained by introducing PV  where installing HHR’s alone will not suffice, 

i.e. where there are 3 external walls, unheated floors etc. An alternative model could be applied by 

installing external wall insulation instead, however investment would be greater. 

Total Investment - £5M (major measures) 

Summary & Funding Considerations  

Based on the above findings, the total investment required to raise the council housing stock by 

2022 will be circa £7.6M. The majority of this investment is made up of complete heating system 

upgrades, fabric upgrades, inc EWI and the introduction of renewable technology. It should be noted 

that unfortunately some of the housing stock will not meet the target C69 irrespective of 

investment, due to their build, location and available utility services.  

This estimate also doesn’t allow for the proportion of the housing stock which currently has no 

energy data, therefore an additional allowance should be made for these properties. The cost to 

survey these properties will be approximately £23,625 (£45 per property) of which 40% are likely to 

achieve a C69 already due to known historical improvements. Therefore a further 208 properties 

could be recorded as being C rated already without the need for further works. 

External funding to complete energy improvement works is very limited, previously the council could 

obtain funding from ECO (Energy Contribution Obligation) from the UK’s main energy suppliers, 

irrespective of the EPC rating of a property. The rules have now changed and ECO 3 can only be 

claimed for social housing properties which full into bands E, F or G. Even where a property is eligible 

for ECO, the measures may be limited and subject to certain criteria being met. Currently we are 

working with EON to ascertain whether Denbighshire can obtain any funding for our properties 

which have an E, F or G EPC rating. Other grant funding avenues will continue to be explored. 

 

Page 21



Denbighshire Housing Property Services Energy Programme 2019 – 2021 
 
 

 

 

Project Workstream:  EPC Rating G   

Spend Profile: 2019/20 - £80k  

 

 

 

               

Heating Upgrades - May 19 - Feb 20  

Month Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20  

Survey                             

Specification & Tender                            

Mobilisation                            

Works on site                            

 

 

 

               

Roof/Cavity Wall insulation- Jun 19 - Nov 19  

Month Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20  

Survey                            

Tender                            

Works on site                            

 

 

 

               

PV/Solar - Jun 19 - Mar 20  

Month Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20  

Survey & Analysis                            

Specification                            

Tender                            

Mobilisation                            

Works on site                            

 

 

               

Windows/Door Replacement - Apr-19 to Jul-19  

Month Apr-19 May-19 Jun-19 Jul-19 Aug-19 Sep-19 Oct-19 Nov-19 Dec-19 Jan-20 Feb-20 Mar-20 Apr-20  

Survey                            

Specification & Tender                            

Works on Site                            

 

P
age 22



   

Denbighshire Housing Property Services Energy Programme 2019 - 2021 

Project Workstream:  EPC Rating F 

Spend Profile: 2019/20 - £70k; 2020/21 - £200k 

                  

Heating Upgrades - Aug 19 - May 20 

Month 
Aug-

19 
Sep-
19 

Oct-
19 

Nov-
19 

Dec-
19 

Jan-
20 

Feb-
20 

Mar-
20 

Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 

Jul-
20 

Aug-
20 

Sep-
20 

Oct-
20 

Nov-
20 

Dec-
20 

Survey                                    

Specification & Tender                                   

Mobilisation                                   

Works on site                                   

                  

High Heat Retention System - Nov 19 - June 20 

Month 
Aug-

19 
Sep-
19 

Oct-
19 

Nov-
19 

Dec-
19 

Jan-
20 

Feb-
20 

Mar-
20 

Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 

Jul-
20 

Aug-
20 

Sep-
20 

Oct-
20 

Nov-
20 

Dec-
20 

Survey                                    

Specification & Tender                                   

Mobilisation                                   

Works on site                                   

                  

External Wall Insulation - Nov 19 - Jan 21 

Month 
Aug-

19 
Sep-
19 

Oct-
19 

Nov-
19 

Dec-
19 

Jan-
20 

Feb-
20 

Mar-
20 

Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 

Jul-
20 

Aug-
20 

Sep-
20 

Oct-
20 

Nov-
20 

Dec-
20 

Survey                                    

Specification & Tender                                   

Mobilisation                                   

Works on site                                   

                  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 23



Denbighshire Housing Property Services Energy Programme 2019 - 
2021 

    

    

Project Workstream:  EPC Rating E  
   

Spend Profile: 2020/21 - £350k; 2021/22 - £120k  
   

               

High Heat Retention System - Apr 20 - May 21 

Month 
Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 

Jul-
20 

Aug-
20 

Sep-
20 

Oct-
20 

Nov-
20 

Dec-
20 

Jan-
21 

Feb-
21 

Mar-
21 

Apr-21 
May-

21 

Survey                              

Specification & Tender                             

Mobilisation                             

Works on site                             

               

Heating Upgrades 

Month 
Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 

Jul-
20 

Aug-
20 

Sep-
20 

Oct-
20 

Nov-
20 

Dec-
20 

Jan-
21 

Feb-
21 

Mar-
21 

Apr-21 
May-

21 

Survey  

Defer to 2021 
Specification & Tender 

Mobilisation 

Works on site 

           
 

   

External Wall Insulation 

Month 
Apr-
20 

May-
20 

Jun-
20 

Jul-
20 

Aug-
20 

Sep-
20 

Oct-
20 

Nov-
20 

Dec-
20 

Jan-
21 

Feb-
21 

Mar-
21 

Apr-21 
May-

21 

Survey  

Programme to be delivered over 3 yrs commencing 2022/23 
Specification & Tender 

Mobilisation 

Works on site 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 24



P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 3 

 

Community Housing - Customer Satisfaction Feedback outcomes and 

comparisons  

Survey of Tenants And Residents (STAR) 

January 2019   

Question 2019 2017 + / - 
Wales 

(out of 16) 
UK 

(out of 241) 

The Overall Quality of your home 90% 86% +4% 1 42 

Your Neighbourhood as a place to live 88% 85% +3% 4 62 

That your rent provides Value For Money 89% 85% +4% 3 57 

That we Listen to your views and Act on 
them 

75% 71% +4% 6 76 

The way we deal with Repairs and 
Maintenance 

89% 85% +4% 1 24 

Overall Service provided by Denbighshire 
Housing 

91% 84% +7% 3 52 

 

 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

Appendix 4  
 
Supported Independent Living Service (SIL) Update 
 
Background  
Historically Housing Warden services were provided to residents who live in 1,218 units of 
DCC owned sheltered accommodation.   
 
These properties included a mix of sole and joint tenancies.  Although the support provided 
was bespoke it was measured by the number of properties rather than the number of 
persons in receipt of support.  Therefore the number of units support provided exceed the 
number of properties.  The support provided was low level and included check calls. 

 

Method of Warden Withdrawal - All residents received a letter, visited at home and a 
needs and risks assessment carried out.   
 
This established ‘need’ and only those persons with assessed need would receive a service.   
 

At the end of quarter one 2015 SIL was providing low level support to 184 citizens and a 
significant number of these citizens  being legacy cases who had previously received 
support from the previous warden service. 
 

Ongoing Legacy Review [coincided with restructure / alignment with CSS Reablement] 

In September 2017 there were 66 legacy citizens in receipt of a service from SIL.  
 
All legacy citizens open to SILs were written to, visited and reassessed in accordance with 
the Social Services & Well-being Act 2014 where focus was on reaffirming SIL service as 
providing short term / outcome focussed support.   
 
SIL were given six months to address the situation and by March 2018 there were 7 legacy 
clients.  It was made clear to citizens that if their situation changed they could access 
support via SPOA / Talking points. 2 of the 66 complained.  
 
Supporting People funding was agreed so extend the support delivered to the 4 people 
below people until a more suitable service became available.  To date 4 legacy clients 
continue to receive a service. However, this will be reduced to just 3 persons. (See table 
below).  
 

  Number Person Support Miscellaneous 

  

1 Female aged 
104 (South) 

Suffers from poor sight and 
hearing.  Has no family. 
Supported by SIL with 
correspondence and making 
appointments 

SP have agreed that 
support should continue  

Page 29



  

2 Female aged 88 
(South) 

Lives in remote area unable 
to drive.  All family ages and 
unable to assist  
Supported by SIL with 
correspondence and making 
appointments 

SP have agreed that 
support should continue 

  

3 Male aged 77 
(South) 

Lives in remote area.  Suffers 
from Glaucoma and is no 
longer able to drive.  Has no 
family support. 
Supported by SIL with 
correspondence and making 
appointments 

SP have agreed that 
support should continue 

  

4 Female aged 92 
(North) 

Has been supported by SIL 
with correspondence and 
making appointments. 
Package of care identified 
and due to be 
reviewed.  Above to be 
addressed by care agency . 

SP agreed that support 
should continue.  But will 
close shortly due to 
involvement from care 
agency 

 
 

SIL Current Service Provision 
As at February 2019 SIL is providing a service to 160 citizens, 39 of who require a joint visit 
in order that service can manage assessed risks making a total of 199 units of support.  SIL 
currently has 39 citizens pending assessment bring the grand total to 215 units of support, 
58 live in DCC owned properties. 
 
Going Forward 
Moving forward, from April 2019 the SIL service will be refocussed as a low level support 
service for people over 50 years of age.  SIL will work closely with the Reablement Team 
and our Community Resource Teams in order to offer a continuum of time limited support 
with the prime intention of promoting independence. 
 
Successes 
Staff within SIL have worked in partnership with internal colleagues within Social Services 
including: Social Worker, SCP’s, Safeguarding, Community Navigators; colleagues from 
other DCC services including: Corporate Health & Safety, Housing, OPUS, Public Health etc.    
 
External agencies include Age Connect, CAB, British Embassy, British Consulate, North 
Wales Police, North Wales Fire Service, Banks and financial institutions, DWP, charitable 
organisations, Heath Authority including hospitals, GPs and clinics. 
 
SIL has been able instrumental in citizens recovering bank charges, unclaimed benefits from 
DWP and grants from charitable organisations such are the Vicars fund, SAFFA, Help for 
Hero’s etc. 
 

Page 30



The service has been helped people access social activities including: - Dementia café, tea 
dances, Men’s Sheds etc. Initially supporting citizens to attend.  This has been very 
successful has citizens have been able to forge new friendships and now attend alone. 
 
 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



       Appendix 5 

REVIEW OF THE IMPACT OF ENDING THE RESIDENT WARDEN ROLE FROM SHELTERED HOUSING SCHEMES.   

Purpose of Report 

To review the impact of the 2014 removal of the residential warden service at sheltered housing schemes. 

Background 

Around a third of Denbighshire Housing stock is designated for older people aged over 55.  We have a number of traditional schemes with a communal 

centre that previously had a residential warden on site. The role was very generic and required some core rent funding but also some Supporting People 

funding due to an element of the role providing care and support albeit very low level. The review in 2014 that led to the change concluded that resources 

could be better deployed in providing specialist support that individuals need regardless of their housing tenure. 

This has led to a legacy that some residents lost the reassurance that the on-site warden provided and has led to claims that residents can become more 

isolated and excluded and the risk that this brings. This risk could be an issue in any of our homes but does seem very avoidable on a “sheltered” style 

complex. 

There have been comments raised in our two STAR surveys since regarding the loss of the warden service and this was also mentioned by customers during 

interviews with the Wales Audit Office in 2018.  

Housing staff regularly visit our schemes however they do not proactively visit tenants. The support needs of our tenant’s remains the responsibility for the 

Councils statutory support services.  Any support role involves compliance and detailed support administration. 

Residents have also benefited from being increasingly active in running their own residents groups and activities rather than relying on the site based 

member of staff. Anecdotal evidence suggests that previously the success of the scheme depended on the personality and attitude of the residential staff 

member and this appears to have led to much inconsistency across the county. 

This review has looked at the options to investigate if we can improve our current service to residents in our older people stock. 

This has concluded that the complications with support funding mean that it is not feasible to return to a role that includes generic support for these 

schemes. However we should consider if there are other services or roles that could support additional reassurance however consideration needs to be 

P
age 33



given to avoid duplication of statutory services in support provision and also with regards to what is the responsibility of Denbighshire housing as landlord. 

Expectations would need to be set clearly for residents. 

The context is there is significant demand for our homes and we have an ongoing project to consider how we will meet this demand long term with regards 

to meeting the needs of older people. Our homes need to remain desirable particularly as new extra care schemes are built in our communities that raise 

the bar in terms of quality of accommodation and supported independent living standards. Our schemes however are good quality, affordable and can 

provide a positive and supportive community for residents to live. 

The age profile of our residents at sheltered schemes suggest residents do live, on average, to an age well above the average age of our community in 

general. 

Recommendation  

That the feasibility of items 3 (additional non-support role provision) and 5 (more targeted work by Housing Staff) below be explored and considered 

further. 

The following table reviews the options available. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 34



REVIEW OF WARDEN ROLE AT SHELTERED SCHEMES 

 Issue Advantages Disadvantages  Comments Potential 

1. Traditional 
Residential 
Warden 

Schemes more marketable  
 
Potential reassurance for 
tenants 
 
Potential to reduced isolation 
by encouraging participation 
 
Supports the Wellbeing Act 
 
Supports some of our most 
vulnerable tenants 
 
Enable us to provide sheltered 
plus style independent living at 
selected schemes. 
 
On site presence for 
community centres 
 
Partial Service charge available 
to cover cost 
 
Reduce demands on office 
staff 
 
 
 

Expensive provision (salary / 
flat) 
 
Support is very low level and 
generic  
 
No funding for support 
element* 
 
Resources should be targeted at 
specific support needs 
 
Significant demands & resources 
needed for compliance and 
support plan management 
 
Builds reliance and expectations 
 
Risk that residents rely on visit 
and contact rather than attempt 
integration and attending  
activities 
 
Reduces opportunities for 
resident led activities** 
 
Other services would reduce 
input as potentially duplicates 
services 
 

This would be return to previous service 
with residential member of staff. 
Responsibilities became significantly 
restricted with limits on actual support / 
care allowed.  
 
Role reduced to daily checks and alerting 
emergency services if required. 
 
*Any support / care element would not be 
eligible for Housing benefit so would require 
residents to pay or supporting people 
funding which is extremely unlikely to be 
available. 
 
** Some residents current benefit in terms 
of their own health & well-being from in 
running residents groups and activities 
 
Corporate priorities – Independent Living & 
Stronger Communities - could be argued 
that this model supports independent living 
but also increases reliance and dependency. 
 

Lack of 
support 
based 
funding and 
the generic 
nature of 
the support 
provision 
makes this 
option 
unviable. 

P
age 35



Staff management - Holiday 
cover / Sickness absence 

2. Mobile Warden 
Provision   
 

Economies of scale through 
cluster responsibility rather 
than site specific 
 
Potential reassurance for 
residents from site visits 
 
Emergency Telephone contact 
for reassurance 
 
On site presence for 
community centres facilities 
management  
 
Partial Service charge available 
to cover cost 
 
Reduce demands on office 
staff 

Expectations of priorities when 
not on site 
 
Reliance on person but still 
limited hours service 
 
Risk that residents rely on visit 
and contact rather than attempt 
integration and attending  
activities 
 
 

This would be the traditional warden role 
involving daily checks but would not be 
residential and could manage more than one 
scheme. 
 
 

Lack of 
support 
based 
funding and 
the generic 
nature of 
the support 
provision 
makes this 
option 
unviable. 

3. Other non -
support role 
such as mobile 
caretaker   

Benefits of on-site presence 
for reassurance  
 
Fully service charge and HB 
eligible if no support element 
in role 
 
Some costs already service 
charged could be incorporated 
to part fund role e.g. cleaning 
 

Limited role and not support 
 
Risk that this would increase 
expectations around level of 
support for individuals. 
 
Expectations of priorities when 
not on site 
 
Competing demands of shared 
schemes 
 

This would be mobile caretaker role who 
could potentially visit a number of sites each 
week. The role could include minor repairs 
enhanced site maintenance and also 
manage the community centre but would 
not involve any direct care or support role 
with residents but would inevitably involve 
liaison with residents.  
 
This could be directly employed or bought in 
service. 
 

This option 
should be 
explored to 
assess 
tenant 
appetite 
and if costs 
can be 
recovered 
through 
service 
charges.  

P
age 36



Potential to enhance 
desirability of schemes 
 
Reduce demands on office 
staff 
 
On site presence for 
community centres facilities 
management  
 
Potential for minor repairs 
savings  

Cost of vehicle & maintenance  
 
Personality of employee vital to 
success of this role. 
 
 

 

4. Additional role  
of Older 
Peoples 
Coordinator 

Provide some reassurance and 
referral mechanism for 
residents as contact for 
support needs / concerns.  
 
Responsibility for support 
plans and compliance would 
remain with provider 
 
Role provides a Housing focus 
and links to a residents 
support and care needs. 
 
Could coordinate activities and 
well-being events at 
community centres. 
 
Could coordinate routine 
updating of resident 
information and identify risk 

Would not provide any support 
for individuals  
 
Risk of ensuring that the 
significant number of residents 
are all included in monitoring 
 
Would not add on site 
reassurance  
 
Funded would need identifying 
through HRA as not benefiting 
specific  individuals 
 
Resource could be better used 
on additional support role in SIL. 
 
Duplicates other roles within the 
Council and other services. 

This is a coordinating role with responsibility 
for overseeing independent living schemes 
and support needs of residents. 
 
Role would not provide direct support but 
would liaise with support providers to 
coordinate support provision and services at 
schemes. 
 
 

This service 
would 
duplicate 
other 
services and 
roles both 
insider and 
externally 
to the 
council such 
as 
Community 
Navigators. 

P
age 37



for further intervention or 
follow up 
 
Provide consistency of service 
across schemes or target 
where additional intervention 
required. 
 
Could lead on opportunities, 
strategy and marketing of 
older peoples housing. 

5. Increase 
capacity within 
the current 
model 

Housing staff able to commit 
more time each week to 
presence at older peoples 
schemes  
 
Smaller patches would enable 
better insight into customers 
circumstances 
 
Smaller patches will facilitate 
more targeted work by 
Housing staff to highlight 
tenants with greater needs to 
ensure signposting and 
referrals for support are in 
place. 

Risk of unrealistic expectation 
around extent of the role of 
Housing staff. This to be 
managed through 
communication. 

Reduce patch sizes (number of properties 
per officer) to allow more customer 
focussed service which would facilitate 
closer working at older people’s schemes. 
 
Staff would be required to maintain up to 
date information on tenants at older 
peoples schemes and  

Housing 
service has 
been 
remodelled 
to create 
significantly 
smaller 
“patches” 
for staff to 
be able to 
know their 
tenants 
better. 

6. Continue with 
current  model 

Promotes independent living 
and integration within 
community 
 
Affordable homes 
 

Loss of reassuring presence on 
site 
 
Resource demands on other 
Housing staff 
 

This is the current independent living model 
we operate. 
 
 

It is likely 
we would 
continue to 
receive 
feedback 
around the 

P
age 38



Resources targeted at 
individual support needs from 
statutory services 
 
Less risk of staff personality 
influencing whole scheme  
 
Community led activities 
mixed with Community 
Development led projects 

Reliance on volunteers to jointly 
manage centre facilities  

impact of 
the loss of 
the warden 

 

P
age 39



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Report to:   Performance Scrutiny Committee  
 
Date of Meeting:  21st March 2019 
 
Lead Member/Officer: Lead Member for Highways, Planning and Sustainable 

Travel / 
Head of Highways & Environment 

 
Report Author(s): Principal Manager: Service Improvement & Fleet/ 

Fleet Manager 
 
Title:    Draft Fleet Strategy 
 

 
1.  What is the report about? 

  
1.1 The report is about a revised Fleet Strategy for Denbighshire County Council. 
 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 

 
2.1 To enable Members to scrutinise the draft strategy as part of the consultation process 

prior to the strategy being finalised and adopted.  Members had requested to see the 
draft strategy to enable a discussion about the carbon impact of the Council’s fleet. 

 
3.  What are the Recommendations? 

   
3.1 That Members support the adoption of the draft strategy, subject to any proposed 

amendments that emerge from the Scrutiny discussion.    
 
4. Report details 

 
4.1  This draft strategy (attached at Appendix I) is primarily concerned with how the Council 

finances; procures; maintains; and disposes of vehicles.  It describes how we currently 
undertake these activities, and how we intend to continue undertaking these activities 
in future.   

 
5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
  
5.1 This strategy directly contributes to the Corporate Plan priority to reduce the carbon 

impact of DCC assets.  Reducing the carbon impact of the council’s fleet is therefore 
a specific workstream with the project to reduce carbon emissions from Council assets 
(buildings and fleet) by at least 15% by 2022 to help protect the environment.  This 
project is receiving financial support from the Corporate Plan funding allocation.  The 
funding is enabling the council to install electric charging points in our main office 
locations and depots.  In turn this is enabling us to introduce electric vehicles into our 
fleet.  We are starting with a relatively modest pilot of two electric vehicles for Business 
Improvement & Modernisation, but we have an ambition (subject to funding and the 
findings from the pilot) to introduce up to 20 small electric vehicles within the next two 
years. 

 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 
 
6.1 The cost of installing the electric vehicle (EV) charging points is being covered by 

Corporate Plan funding.  The costs associated with purchasing and maintaining fleet 
are charged back to the client department.   

 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment?  
 
7.1 The Well-being Impact Assessment (WBIA, attached at Appendix II) is currently in 

draft form because the strategy itself is in draft form.  The strategy and the WBIA will 
both be finalised once we have completed the internal consultation process.  
However, the draft WBIA has a positive impact overall due to our ambition to shift 
(over time) to vehicles powered by more sustainable fuels, where possible).  

   
8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
 
8.1  This paper forms part of the consultation process and enable Scrutiny to be part of 

the consultation process.  SLT have also been consulted on the draft strategy.   
 
9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 
9.1 The strategy sets out the current position and refers to interesting developments in 

respect of electric and alternative fuel vehicles – the development of which will help 
support Corporate Plan objectives. The strategy should not prejudice any future 
review of the council’s fleet as part of the budget process.  

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 
10.1 There is a section on risk within the strategy itself (section 7).  The most significant 

risks within this strategy are as follows: 

 Fuel, oil, tyres and vehicle components are constantly subject to market prices 

which affect future budget forecasts for Fleet running costs. Most notable are 

volatile fuel prices linked to oil price and consequently this impacts upon tyre 

prices due to their high oil content. 

 Security of fuel supply represents a business continuity risk. Introducing electric 

vehicles in the fleet goes a small way to mitigating the risk from liquid fuel 

delivery shortage.  

 Loss of the Operator’s Licence would be a serious risk to many of the council’s 

activities and its ability to supply services. 

11. Power to make the Decision 
  
11.1 Section 21 of the Local Government Act 2000 
 
11.2 Section 7.4.1 of the Council’s Constitution outlines Scrutiny’s powers with respect of 

policy development and review. 
 
 Contact Officer: Head of Highways & Environment  Tel:  01824 706397 

Page 42



 

 
 

DENBIGHSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL 
 

FLEET STRATEGY  
 

 

 

Appendix 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 45



  

2 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 

Contents 

1 Introduction ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

1.1 Fleet Asset Management Objectives ....................................................................................... 3 

1.2 Operating Environment ........................................................................................................... 4 

1.3 Key Operating Areas ................................................................................................................ 4 

1.4 Outside of Fleet Strategy Scope .............................................................................................. 5 

2 Procurement, funding and replacement ......................................................................................... 5 

2.1 Procurement ............................................................................................................................ 5 

2.2 Electric and alternative fuel vehicles ....................................................................................... 5 

2.3 Funding .................................................................................................................................... 6 

2.4 Replacement Strategy ............................................................................................................. 6 

2.5 Spare Vehicles ......................................................................................................................... 6 

3 Maintenance ................................................................................................................................... 7 

3.1 Safety Inspections ................................................................................................................... 7 

3.2 Maintenance ........................................................................................................................... 7 

3.3 Monitor Performance of Fleet Maintenance Service .............................................................. 8 

4 Running............................................................................................................................................ 8 

4.1 Fuel Use and Efficiency ............................................................................................................ 8 

4.2 Tyres and parts ........................................................................................................................ 9 

4.3 Insurance ................................................................................................................................. 9 

4.4 Vehicle hire .............................................................................................................................. 9 

5 Disposal ........................................................................................................................................... 9 

6 Further work .................................................................................................................................... 9 

7 Risks ............................................................................................................................................... 10 

8 Review ........................................................................................................................................... 10 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 46



  

3 
 

1 Introduction 

Efficient management of fleet assets is critical to the delivery and performance of 

public services.  This Fleet Asset Strategy (the “strategy”) defines and controls the 

management of council fleet assets.  The strategy will be formally reviewed every two 

years, or more frequently if required.   

The strategy relates to all operational vehicles used by council services for direct 

delivery of a service to the public or to support service delivery. It has been developed 

in accordance with the following principles:  

 The Denbighshire County Council (DCC) fleet is predominantly powered by 

fossil fuels, and is therefore a major contributor to the councils’ carbon 

emissions.  This strategy aims to reduce the current reliance on fossil fuels and 

to make the DCC fleet “greener” by reducing carbon emissions from DCC fleet 

by 2022.   

 The Fleet Services Team within Highways and Environment is tasked with 

ownership, direction and implementation of the Fleet Asset Strategy on behalf of 

Denbighshire County Council. 

 The Fleet Services Team will act as a broker for its clients within Denbighshire 

County Council, always seeking continuous improvement to the services it 

provides to the end user and stakeholders by adopting and applying current 

industry best practise to the provision, management, maintenance and disposal 

of all fleet assets. 

 The Fleet Services Team will work closely with service providers to evaluate 

and challenge any future fleet requirements. 

 The Fleet Services Team will continue to promote collaborative working with 

both local and national colleagues and other agencies to reduce costs and 

develop and exchange best practice. 

 Vehicle and equipment procurement will be undertaken and controlled in 

accordance with the County Council standing orders with mechanisms put in 

place to evaluate and approve any vehicle or equipment replacement. 

 The Fleet Services Team will promote the generation of income from external 

sources in order to obtain the highest efficiency from the available resources. 

 Following the implementation of a new combined fleet management system, a 

revised suite of Key Performance Indicators will be developed to ensure that 

progress can be accurately measured. 

1.1 Fleet Asset Management Objectives 

The objectives of the Fleet Asset Strategy are: 

 A Fleet Fit for Purpose - All vehicles will be "fit for purpose" in terms of condition 

and suitability for the intended use.   

Page 47



  

4 
 

 Fleet Used Effectively – Fleet assets will be treated as a corporate resource, 

and the need to own/maintain the vehicles will be regularly challenged with 

users and the performance of fleet assets will be monitored and reported with 

the aim of eliminating unnecessary expenditure. 

 Deliver the lowest whole life cost.  Vehicles may not always be acquired for the 

lowest initial cost but they must deliver the lowest whole life cost over the life of 

the cycle. 

 Sustainable - A fleet which is efficiently run, maximises value for money, is 

environmentally and energy efficient and contributes directly to delivering year 

on year reductions in carbon emissions. 

 All vehicle expenditure will be managed by Fleet Services and recharged to 

departmental budgets. Such costs will be regularly reviewed and high cost items 

or unplanned expenditure will be discussed with user departments. 

 Safety of the driver, crew and the public.  The vehicle must present the minimum 

Health and Safety risk to our staff and members of the public. 

1.2 Operating Environment 

Fleet operations are highly regulated and must adhere to the Operator Licence terms 

and conditions, European Directives, Health and Safety legislation, DVSA and DVLA 

rules and regulations as well as Denbighshire County Council policies and guidelines 

covering vehicles and drivers. 

Running a modern fleet is a safety critical operation that must ensure employee and 

public safety. This is achieved through best practice in vehicle inspection, 

maintenance, operation and procurement. 

The high profile of Denbighshire County Council vehicles in our communities has 

implications for the council's reputation.  A well maintained and efficient fleet 

contributes to public confidence in the council, and in the ability of the council to be 

effective, efficient and recognised for excellence. 

1.3 Key Operating Areas 

The key operating areas of the Fleet Services Team are as follows: 

 Act as holder of Operator's Licence ['O licence'] 

 Maintenance of in-house fleet and plant assets 

 Support front line services to deliver their particular service requirements  

 Manage key contracts such as vehicle procurement to deliver the service 

 Professional advice to users on vehicle specification and operation 

 Storage and supply of fuel 

 Provide a corporate hire desk facility  

Page 48



  

5 
 

1.4 Outside of Fleet Strategy Scope 

All departments control their own staff travel expenditure.  Grey fleet (using 

personal vehicles for business journeys) mileage claims are controlled by 

the individual services.   

2 Procurement, funding and replacement 

2.1 Procurement  

Vehicles/plant and parts are predominantly purchased through “The Procurement 

Partnership Limited” (TPPL) framework and other specialist national frameworks 

such as Crown Commercial Services allowing combined purchasing power to provide 

discounts and savings.  

Prior to any vehicle purchase, consideration will be given to whole life cost.  This not 

only includes purchase price but also includes previous performance of vehicles and 

suppliers.  This process is undertaken at the tender evaluation stage.  

2.2 Electric and alternative fuel vehicles  

The council has made a commitment within the Corporate Plan 2017-22 to reduce 

carbon emissions from its assets, including DCC fleet.  Consideration will therefore 

always be given to purchasing vehicles which run on alternative fuels, such as 

electric.  The fleet procurement forms have been amended to ensure that 

consideration is always given to alternative fuels before procuring any new vehicles.  

Before any vehicles powered by fossil fuels are procured, a legitimate business case 

must be included to justify to decision not to purchase a vehicle running on 

alternative fuel.  If the reason is simply financial, the form will highlight the additional 

whole-life cost of the alternative fuel vehicle, and consideration will be given to 

whether the additional cost could be provided via the clients’ operation budget or by 

other means (e.g. external grant, or corporate plan funding).  

The council is currently in the process of procuring two small electric vans as part of 

a trial to assess the viability of electric vehicles.  If this trial is successful, the ambition 

would be (subject to funding) to increase the number of electric charging points 

across various council locations to support up to 20 small electric vehicles by the end 

of 2020/21. 

We expect technology to improve and as such would envisage larger commercial 

vehicles coming to the market.  At such times we would trial these vehicles and again 

assess the viability for our fleet.   

Cutting carbon emissions to help combat climate change is a key priority for the 

council.  We therefore need to show leadership on this issue by taking positive steps 

and leading by example. In summary, our overall approach to reducing our fleet-

related carbon footprint involves: 

 The introduction of vehicles that run on alternative fuels 

Page 49



  

6 
 

 Accurate data capture and measurement 

 Fuel management and fuel consumption for individual drivers and vehicles 

 Training, technology and engagement to promote efficient driving, which can only 

be properly monitored through fuel management 

 Mileage reduction using route optimisation technology 

 Grey fleet management to control risk and minimise mileage e.g. greater use of 

fleet pool vehicles 

 Implementing fleet policies which encourage efficient vehicle choice and driver 

behaviour 

Our vision is to become a leader in this field, but we see our approach as being one 

of gradual progression over a number of years towards a path of continually reducing 

carbon emissions.   

2.3 Funding 

Most vehicles purchases are funded via Prudential Borrowing, which follows the 

guidance provided by the finance department.  Leasing tends to be more expensive 

and less flexible. 

2.4 Replacement Strategy 

Due the huge variance in the Fleet make up there are no standard replacement 

times.  Each individual vehicle type will have an appropriate life span.  Replacement 

vehicles are scheduled on the following guidelines: 

 Cars   3/4 years 

 Vans up to 5 Tonnes  5/6 years 

 HGVs   7/8years 

 Specialist Vehicles 10 years 

Flexibility within the replacement guidelines permits new vehicles to be introduced 

earlier and existing vehicles to be retained where there is a convincing best value 

case. Continuous assessment of the replacement programme allows smoothing out 

of peaks and troughs in capital expenditure.   The assessment is based on the 

condition of the vehicle, needs of the service, future maintenance costs and potential 

future residual value. 

Whenever possible new vehicles are assessed and trialled to keep abreast of new 

technology and to specify the most up to date, reliable and cost efficient vehicles. 

This practice improves vehicle availability and reduces vehicle downtime. 

2.5 Spare Vehicles 

It is the councils’ strategy not to hold spare vehicles, as it is not deemed to provide 

value for money.  If a vehicle is off the road for a significant period of time, a 

Page 50



  

7 
 

replacement will be hired in order to maintain essential services.  The only exception 

to this general rule is for specialist vehicles such as refuse trucks and gritting trucks 

which we are unable to hire at short notice.  In such circumstances, the council has 

spare vehicles in order to mitigate against the risk of not being able to deliver critical 

services.   

3 Maintenance  

Maintenance of the fleet needs to take place in a timely, professional and legal 

manner to secure a safe and cost effective fleet. All of the council fleet is serviced 

and maintained by our in-house Fleet Maintenance Service, predominantly in the 

councils’ Fleet Maintenance Workshop in Bodelwyddan.  This is supported by our 

satellite unit in Lon Parcwr, Ruthin and by mobile technicians. 

Fleet vehicles must comply with the Road Traffic Act rules and regulations together 

with the Operator’s Licence legal requirements on maintenance, inspection and 

record keeping standards. Vehicles, plant and fitted equipment must be maintained to 

a safe and legal standard. Programmed maintenance and repair schedules must be 

carried out to the conditions laid down by DVSA.  

3.1 Safety Inspections 

The stipulated inspection intervals in the operator’s licence are 26, 17, 12, 8 and 6 

weeks for vehicles, trailers and heavy plant. For light vehicles, light plant and 

equipment, service intervals are 4, 6 and 12 monthly.  Please see table below. 

Safety Inspection Schedule 

Vehicle/Plant Type Safety Inspection Intervals (Weeks) 

Small Plant & Trailers 26 

Car, Vans & Larger Plant 17 

Minibuses 13 

HGVs up to 26 Tonnes 8 

Refuse Vehicles & Larger HGVs 4 

3.2 Maintenance 

In addition to the Safety Inspection regime, all vehicles and plant are serviced 

annually and/or to the manufacturer’s recommendations.  All vehicles are MOT 

tested as per the legal requirements, also the vehicles and plant are tested to other 

standards such as LOLER and Tachograph legislation.  These Safety Inspections are 

all undertaken by our in-house Fleet mechanics. 

In respect of repairs, we refer to manufacturer’s standards as closely as we can to 

ensure downtime is minimised, and repairs are undertaken by our in-house Fleet 

mechanics. 

 

 

Page 51



  

8 
 

3.3 Monitor Performance of Fleet Maintenance Service 

Processes and management arrangements are subject to both internal and external 

audits and reviews.  Performance is monitored to ensure best value for Fleet users. 

Performance is scrutinised by a variety of methods, including service reviews; budget 

reviews; peer reviews and equipment and vehicle reviews. Performance is also 

benchmarked against peers in the industry. 

Feedback from reviews and audits will be taken into account when determining future 

asset provision and general fleet arrangements. 

4 Running 

Running our fleet efficiently involves securing value for money on aspects such as 

fuel, tyres, insurance and vehicle hire. This value for money is realised through tight 

controls on expenditure, effective procurement arrangements and close working 

arrangements with other organisations and suppliers. 

4.1 Fuel Use and Efficiency  

Fuel is a major cost in Fleet operation and its consumption rate is a direct 

consequence of the vehicle type and fuel type.  Almost all vehicles in the Fleet are 

diesel powered, although we are now starting to introduce some electric powered 

vehicles into the fleet.  Replacement vehicles are almost invariably more 

environmentally friendly as they are manufactured to latest fuel efficient standards 

with Euro5/6 engine types and strict emission limits.  These factors are taken into 

account at the procurement stage. 

The Fleet Service has bulk fuel tanks strategically placed around the county which is 

capable of servicing the whole fleet as required. 

The volatility of fuel prices at the time of purchase is highlighted in the chart below. 

Ensuring that the fleet is as fuel efficient as possible will reduce the potentially huge 

variances that the County Council could spend on fuel year on year.  Diesel prices 

have been as low as 0.99p/litre in 2009 to as high as 147p/litre in 2012.  These price 

variances have a major impact on the balance sheet when on average we purchase 

850,000 litres per annum.  The chart below shows petrol and diesel prices over the 

past ten years (pence per litre): 

 

Page 52



  

9 
 

Our strategy is to reduce our reliance on fossil fuel, particularly diesel, in future, and 

we will proactively look to introduce alternative fuel powered vehicles wherever 

possible (see Section 2.2).   

4.2 Tyres and parts  

Both tyres and parts are procured through national framework agreements in 

collaboration with the Welsh Public sector.  These are competitive frameworks 

designed to insure best value for money. 

4.3 Insurance 

This is procured by the insurance and risk department which is controlled by the 

Finance department. 

4.4 Vehicle hire 

Vehicle hire is procured through a national framework agreement in collaboration 

with the Welsh Public sector.  This is a competitive framework designed to insure 

best value for money.  The hiring of vehicles by Fleet is in line with our Travel and 

Subsistence Policy where we provide hired vehicles for council officers who are 

undertaking long distance journeys. 

5 Disposal 

Vehicle disposals are usually the result of scheduled replacement, but can also be 

due to a vehicle becoming surplus to requirements within the client service and the 

vehicle not being suitable for re-assignment to another service.  If a vehicle becomes 

surplus to requirements within a service, we will initially look to:    

 Redeploy the vehicle to another service within the council; 

 Swap out a higher mileage/lower condition vehicle of the same type; 

All vehicle disposals are done via public auction, based on advice from internal audit 

to ensure transparency.  Fleet currently use a number of public auctions based in the 

Northwest of England, such as Wilsons at Queensferry, Burnley Auctions and 

Stoodleys in Manchester.  For smaller, more specialised, plant we use the Ruthin 

Farmers Auction.  We do not sell privately or part exchange.  Transparency is 

important to help safeguard the council’s reputation.  All capital receipts are returned 

to the client department. 

6 Further work 

The size and nature of the council’s fleet may change in future if council services are 

redesigned or the council adopt alternative deliver models.  Opportunities to reduce 

the fleet size may also materialise in future years as technology improves and 

service delivery models evolve and change. 

 

Page 53



  

10 
 

7 Risks 

The most significant risks within this strategy are as follows: 

 Fuel, oil, tyres and vehicle components are constantly subject to market prices 

which affect future budget forecasts for Fleet running costs. Most notable are 

volatile fuel prices linked to oil price and consequently this impacts upon tyre 

prices due to their high oil content. 

 Security of fuel supply represents a business continuity risk. Introducing electric 

vehicles in the fleet goes a small way to mitigating the risk from liquid fuel 

delivery shortage.  

 Loss of the Operator’s Licence would be a serious risk to many of the council’s 

activities and its ability to supply services. 

8 Review 

A review of the Fleet Strategy will be undertaken annually by the Head of Highways 

& Environment. 

 

Review Date:  11th March 2019  

Reviewed by: Tony Ward, Head of Highways & Environment 

Date approved:   

 

 

 

 

Page 54



FLEET STRATEGY (DRAFT)
Well-being Impact Assessment Report

This report summarises the likely impact of the proposal on the social, economic, environmental
and cultural well-being of Denbighshire, Wales and the world.

Assessment Number: 627

Brief description: STRATEGY FOR FLEET FOR THE PERIOD 2019-2024

Date Completed: 12/03/2019 08:42:24 Version: 2

Completed by: Chris Brown

Responsible Service: Highways & Environmental Services

Localities affected by
the proposal: Whole County,

Who will be affected by
the proposal? ALL FLEET USERS AND DENBIGHSHIRE RESIDENTS

Was this impact
assessment completed
as a group?

No

Page 55



IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
Before we look in detail at the contribution and impact of the proposal, it is important to consider
how the proposal is applying the sustainable development principle. This means that we must act "in
a manner which seeks to ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the
ability of future generations to meet their own needs."

Score for the sustainability of the approach

 ( 3 out of 4 stars ) Actual score : 28 / 30.

Implications of the score

WE BELIEVE WITH THE INTRODUCTION OF ELECTRIC VEHICLES WE WILL CONTRIBUTE TO OUR
GOAL OF REDUCING CARBON EMISSIONS GENERATED BY COUNCIL ASSETS. THIS IS A JOINED UP
APPROACH WITH OTHER DEPARTMENTS WITH THE COUNCIL AND WE WILL FOLLOW CLOSELY ALL
NEW TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS TO ENSURE WE ARE LEADERS IN OUR FIELD.

Summary of impact

Well-being Goals

A prosperous Denbighshire Positive

A resilient Denbighshire Positive

A healthier Denbighshire Positive

A more equal Denbighshire Neutral

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities Positive

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh
language Positive

A globally responsible Denbighshire Positive

Main conclusions

BY PURCHASING ELECTRIC VEHICLES WE ARE DETERMINED TO REDUCE CARBON EMISSIONS
ACROSS THE WHOLE COUNCIL, THIS WILL HAVE A POSITIVE IMPACT ON OUR LOCAL ENVIRONMENT
AND WILL STRAT US ON TEH PATH TO ACHIEVING A CARBON NEUTRAL POSITION. THIS IS OUR
GOAL, HOWEVER WE WILL NEED ASSISTANCE FROM NATIONAL GOVERMENT TO ACHIEVE ALL OUR
GOALS.

Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

 We have consulted published research or guides that inform us about the likely impact of the
proposal

 We have involved an expert / consulted a group who represent those who may affected by the
proposal

 We have engaged with people who will be affected by the proposal

Page 56



THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE
WORLD

A prosperous Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

REDUCTION IN CARBON EMISSIONS AND LESS RELIANCE ON FOSSIL
FUELS

Further actions
required NO NEGATIVE IMPACTS

Positive impacts identified:

A low carbon society REDUCING CARBON EMISSIONS AND HAVING LESS RELIANCE ON FOSSIL
FUELS

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

LESS RELIANCE ON FOSSIL FUELS

Economic
development DRIVE TOWARDS A CARBON NEUTRAL ECONOMY

Quality skills for the
long term N/A

Quality jobs for the
long term SECURES EXISTING EMPLOYMENT

Childcare N/A

Negative impacts identified:

A low carbon society

Quality
communications,
infrastructure and
transport

Economic
development

Quality skills for the
long term

Quality jobs for the
long term

Childcare

A resilient Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

REDUCTION IN CARBON EMSSIONS, LESS RELAINCE ON FOSSIL FUELS
WITH OUR MOVE TOWARDS A CARBON NEUTRAL FLEET

Page 57



Further actions
required N/A

Positive impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment A MOVE TOWARDS A CARBON NEUTRAL ENVIRONMENT

Biodiversity in the
built environment IMPROVEMENT IN AIR QUALITY BY REDUCING CARBON EMISSIONS

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

REDUCTION IN CARBON EMISSIONS

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption LESS RELIANCE ON FOSSIL FUELS

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

THIS WILL HEIGHTEN AWARENESS WITHIN OUR COMMUNITIES

Flood risk
management N/A

Negative impacts identified:

Biodiversity and the
natural environment

Biodiversity in the
built environment

Reducing waste,
reusing and
recycling

Reduced energy/fuel
consumption

People’s awareness
of the environment
and biodiversity

Flood risk
management

A healthier Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

A REDUCTION IN CARBON EMISSIONS WILL LEAD TO A HEALTHIER
ENVIRONMENT WITH FEWER POLLUTANTS BEING EMITTED

Further actions
required N/A

Positive impacts identified:

Page 58



A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

LESS CARBON EMISSIONS, HELPING TO REDUCE LOCAL AIR POLLUTION

Access to good
quality, healthy food N/A

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

AN ALL AROUND HEALTHIER ENVIRONMENT

Access to healthcare N/A

Participation in
leisure opportunities N/A

Negative impacts identified:

A social and physical
environment that
encourage and
support health and
well-being

Access to good
quality, healthy food

People’s emotional
and mental well-
being

Access to healthcare

Participation in
leisure opportunities

A more equal Denbighshire

Overall Impact Neutral

Justification for
impact

A REDUCTION IN CARBON EMISSIONS WILL HAVE A POSITIVE IMPACT
ON GROUPS WITHIN OUR SOCIETY

Further actions
required N/A

Positive impacts identified:

Page 59



Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

N/A

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

N/A

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

N/A

People in poverty N/A

Negative impacts identified:

Improving the well-
being of people with
protected
characteristics. The
nine protected
characteristics are:
age; disability;
gender
reassignment;
marriage or civil
partnership;
pregnancy and
maternity; race;
religion or belief;
sex; and sexual
orientation

People who suffer
discrimination or
disadvantage

Areas with poor
economic, health or
educational
outcomes

People in poverty

A Denbighshire of cohesive communities

Overall Impact Positive Page 60



Justification for
impact

IMPROVEMENT IN ACCESS TO EV CHARGING POINTS WILL KEEP OUR
COUNTY IN TOUCH WITH TECHNOLOGICAL DEVELOPMENTS AND KEEP
THE LOCAL ECONOMY ATTRACTIVE FOR FUTURE INVESTMENTS

Further actions
required N/A

Positive impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals N/A

Community
participation and
resilience

OUR APPROACH SHOULD EVENTUALLY LEAD TO AN IMPROVEMENT IN THE
INFRASTRUCTURE FOR CHARGING EV'S THROUGHOUT THE COUNTY

The attractiveness of
the area WILL HELP PROMOTE TOURISM

Connected
communities

AN IMPROVED EV CHARGING INFRASTRUCTURE WILL HELP TO CONNECT
COMMUNITIES MORE CLOSELY

Rural resilience AN IMPROVED EV CHARING INFRASTRUCTURE WILL HELP TO CONNECT
COMMUNITIES MORE CLOSELY

Negative impacts identified:

Safe communities
and individuals

Community
participation and
resilience

The attractiveness of
the area

Connected
communities

Rural resilience

A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact USE OF THE WELSH LANGUAGE

Further actions
required N/A

Positive impacts identified:

People using Welsh BI-LINGUAL EV CHARGING POINTS

Promoting the Welsh
language BI-LINGUAL EV CHARGING POINTS

Culture and heritage HELP PROMOTE TOURISM

Page 61



Negative impacts identified:

People using Welsh

Promoting the Welsh
language

Culture and heritage

A globally responsible Denbighshire

Overall Impact Positive

Justification for
impact

WE ARE CONTRIBUTING TO A REDUCTION IN GLOBAL WARMING BY OUR
EFFORTS TO REDUCE CARBON EMISSIONS

Further actions
required N/A

Positive impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

WILL CONTRIBUTE TO THE CHALLENGE OF REDUCING GLOBAL WARMING

Human rights N/A

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

REDUCTION IN CARBON EMISSIONS LEADING TO A HEALTHIER
ENVIRONMENT FOR ALL

Negative impacts identified:

Local, national,
international supply
chains

Human rights

Broader service
provision in the local
area or the region

Page 62



  

 

Report to:     Performance Scrutiny Committee 

Date of Meeting:   21 March 2019 

Lead Officer/Member:  Lead Member for Community Infrastructure 

Head of Business Improvement & Modernisation 

Report Author:  Street Naming and Numbering Officer 

Title:     Street Naming and Numbering Policy Information 

 
 

 

1. What is the report about?  
 

1.1 A covering report for Denbighshire County Council’s (DCC) Street Naming and 
Numbering policy. 

2. What is the reason for making this report? 
 

A request has been made by Scrutiny to review the policy.  
 

3. What are the recommendations? 
 

3.1 That Scrutiny review DCC’s policy and consider whether changes are 
required. 

 
4. Report details 

 
4.1 The Street Naming and Numbering policy was adopted by Denbighshire in 

June 2014 by full Council. The policy was based on best practice in other 
Local Authorities. The current policy is attached at Appendix1. 
 

4.2 The existing policy has been modified once since it was adopted. A request 
was made by a local developer to include “Cae” as a prefix to Welsh street 
names, as this was not on the list of acceptable names. This change was 
incorporated into the policy and approved by Delegated Lead Member 
decision in August 2018.  
 

4.3 On the whole the policy has worked well since its adoption. During that time 
twenty new streets have been named. This has included large sites within the 
north of the County such as the Aberkinsey site where the streets were named 
in Welsh after servicemen who have passed away. There are also smaller 
developments through-out the Authority such as the new street in Llanrhaeadr, 
which has been named after the farm that owned the land the site is on. Two 
unnamed streets have been given official street names in Gellifor and 
Llanarmon-yn-Iâl. 

Page 63

Agenda Item 7



  

5. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 
 
5.1 N/A 

 
6. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

 
6.1 N/A  

 
7. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment? 

The completed Well-being Impact Assessment report can be downloaded 
from the website and should be attached as an appendix to the report 

7.1 N/A 

8. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others?  
 

8.1 We would welcome any observations that Scrutiny may have. 
 

9. Chief Finance Officer Statement 
 

9.1 N/A 

10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 
 

10.1 N/A 

11. Power to make the Decision 
 

11.1 Local Government Act 1972 

11.2 Scrutiny’s power with respect of policy development and review is outlined in 
Section 7.4.1 of the Council’s Constitution. 

Contact Officer: 

Street Naming and Numbering Officer, Strategic Planning Team  

Tel:  01824 708049 

 

Page 64

http://wellbeing.denbighshire.gov.uk/


1 
 

Adran A: Cyflwyniad ............................................................................................... 2 

Adran B: Enwi Strydoedd ......................................................................................... 6 

Adran C: Enwi a Rhifo Eiddo ................................................................................. 12 

Adran Ch: Cyfeiriadau Post .................................................................................. 16 

Adran D: Taliadau ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Rhifo Eiddo ................................... 20 

Adran Dd: Gosod placiau enwau strydoedd ..................................................... 20 

Adran E: Adolygiad polisi ...................................................................................... 22 

Adran F: Cysylltiadau defnyddiol ......................................................................... 22 

 

Polisi Enwi Strydoedd a Rhifo 

 

Cymeradwywyd  

Gorffennaf 2014 

Wedi diwygiedig Awst 2018 
 

Page 65



2 
 

Adran A: Cyflwyniad 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 66



3 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 68



5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 69

https://www.sirddinbych.gov.uk/cy/preswyliwr/rheoliadau-cynllunio-ac-adeiladu/enwi-strydoedd-a-rhifo.aspx
https://www.sirddinbych.gov.uk/cy/preswyliwr/rheoliadau-cynllunio-ac-adeiladu/enwi-strydoedd-a-rhifo.aspx


6 
 

Adran B: Enwi Strydoedd 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 70



7 
 

 

 

o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

o 

o 
o 
o 
o 

o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

o 

Page 71



8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 ŷ’r Domen

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 72



9 
 

 

 

o 

o 

 

 ŵ

 

 

 

 

Page 73



10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 74



11 
 

 

Page 75



12 
 

Adran C: Enwi a Rhifo Eiddo 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ŷ

 

 

 

 

Page 76



13 
 

 

 

 

 ŷ

 ŵr

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 77



14 
 

 

 

 

 

o 

o 

o 

 ŷ

 

 

 

 

Page 78



15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 79



16 
 

Adran D: Cyfeiriadau Post 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 80



17 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 ŵ ŵ

Page 81



18 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 82



19 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 83



20 
 

Adran E: Taliadau ar gyfer Gwasanaethau Rhifo Eiddo 

 

 

 

Adran F: Gosod placiau enwau strydoedd 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 84



21 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 85



22 
 

Adran G: Adolygiad polisi  

Adran I: Cysylltiadau defnyddiol 

Page 86

mailto:llpgrequests@denbighshire.gov.uk


1 
 

Section A: Introduction ............................................................................................ 2 

Section B: Naming Streets ....................................................................................... 6 

Section C: Naming and Numbering Properties .................................................. 12 

Section D: Postal addresses .................................................................................. 16 

Section E: Charges for Property Numbering Services......................................... 20 

Section F: Installation of street name plates ....................................................... 20 

Section G: Policy review ........................................................................................ 22 

Section H: Useful contacts .................................................................................... 22 

Approved July 2014 

Revised date August 2018 

 

Street Naming and Numbering Policy 

Page 87



2 
 

Section A: Introduction 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 88



3 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 89



4 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 90



5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 91

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/planning-and-building-regulations/street-naming-and-numbering.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/planning-and-building-regulations/street-naming-and-numbering.aspx
mailto:customerservice@denbighshire.gov.uk


6 
 

Section B: Naming Streets 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 92



7 
 

 

o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

o 
o 
o 
o 

o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 
o 

o 

 

 

 

Page 93



8 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 94



9 
 

 

o 

o 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 95



10 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 96



11 
 

 

Page 97



12 
 

Section C: Naming and Numbering Properties 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 98



13 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 99



14 
 

 

 

 

o 

o 

o 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 100



15 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 101



16 
 

Section D: Postal addresses 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 102



17 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 103



18 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 104



19 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 105



20 
 

Section E: Charges for Property Numbering Services 

 

 

 

Section F: Installation of street name plates 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 106



21 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 107



22 
 

Section G: Policy review  

Section I: Useful contacts 

Page 108

https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/planning-and-building-regulations/street-naming-and-numbering.aspx
https://www.denbighshire.gov.uk/en/resident/planning-and-building-regulations/street-naming-and-numbering.aspx
mailto:llpgrequests@denbighshire.gov.uk


Report to:   Performance Scrutiny Committee 
 
Date of Meeting:  21 March 2019 
 
Lead Officer:   Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
 
Report Author:  Scrutiny Co-ordinator 
 
Title:    Scrutiny Work Programme 
 

 

 
1. What is the report about? 

  
The report presents Performance Scrutiny Committee with its draft forward work 
programme for members’ consideration. 

 
2.  What is the reason for making this report? 
  

To seek the Committee to review and agree on its programme of future work, and to 
update members on relevant issues. 

 
3. What are the Recommendations? 

  
That the Committee considers the information provided and approves, revises or 
amends its forward work programme as it deems appropriate. 

 
4. Report details 

 
4.1 Section 7 of Denbighshire County Council’s Constitution sets out each Scrutiny 

Committee’s terms of reference, functions and membership, as well as the rules of 
procedure and debate.   

 

4.2 The Constitution stipulates that the Council’s scrutiny committees must set, and 
regularly review, a programme for their future work.  By reviewing and prioritising 
issues, members are able to ensure that the work programme delivers a member-led 
agenda. 

 
4.3 For a number of years it has been an adopted practice in Denbighshire for scrutiny 

committees to limit the number of reports considered at any one meeting to a 
maximum of four plus the Committee’s own work programme report.  The aim of this 
approach is to facilitate detailed and effective debate on each topic. 

 
4.4 In recent years the Welsh Government (WG) and the Wales Audit Office (WAO) have 

highlighted the need to strengthen scrutiny’s role across local government and public 
services in Wales, including utilising scrutiny as a means of engaging with residents 
and service-users.  From now on scrutiny will be expected to engage better and more 
frequently with the public with a view to securing better decisions which ultimately 
lead to better outcomes for citizens.  The WAO will measure scrutiny’s effectiveness 
in fulfilling these expectations. 

 

Page 109

Agenda Item 8



4.5 Having regard to the national vision for scrutiny whilst at the same time focussing on 
local priorities, the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group (SCVCG) recommended 
that the Council’s scrutiny committees should, when deciding on their work 
programmes, focus on the following key areas: 

 budget savings; 
 achievement of the Corporate Plan objectives (with particular emphasis on the 

their deliverability during a period of financial austerity);  
 any other items agreed by the Scrutiny Committee (or the SCVCG) as high 

priority (based on the PAPER test criteria – see reverse side of the ‘Member 
Proposal Form’ at Appendix 2) and; 

 Urgent, unforeseen or high priority issues 
 
4.6  Scrutiny Proposal Forms 
 As mentioned in paragraph 4.2 above the Council’s Constitution requires scrutiny 

committees to prepare and keep under review a programme for their future work.  To 
assist the process of prioritising reports, if officers are of the view that a subject 
merits time for discussion on the Committee’s business agenda they have to formally 
request the Committee to consider receiving a report on that topic.  This is done via 
the submission of a ‘proposal form’ which clarifies the purpose, importance and 
potential outcomes of suggested subjects.  No officer proposal forms have been 
received for consideration at the current meeting. 

 
4.7 With a view to making better use of scrutiny’s time by focussing committees’ 

resources on detailed examination of subjects, adding value through the decision-
making process and securing better outcomes for residents, the SCVCG decided that 
members, as well as officers, should complete ‘scrutiny proposal forms’ outlining the 
reasons why they think a particular subject would benefit from scrutiny’s input.  A 
copy of the ‘member’s proposal form’ can be seen at Appendix 2.  The reverse side 
of this form contains a flowchart listing questions which members should consider 
when proposing an item for scrutiny, and which committees should ask when 
determining a topic’s suitability for inclusion on a scrutiny forward work programme.  
If, having followed this process, a topic is not deemed suitable for formal examination 
by a scrutiny committee, alternative channels for sharing the information or 
examining the matter can be considered e.g. the provision of an ‘information report’, 
or if the matter is of a very local nature examination by the relevant Member Area 
Group (MAG).  No items should be included on a forward work programme without a 
‘scrutiny proposal form’ being completed and accepted for inclusion by the 
Committee or the SCVCG.  Assistance with their completion is available from the 
Scrutiny Co-ordinator.  

 
 Cabinet Forward Work Programme 
4.8 When determining their programme of future work it is useful for scrutiny committees 

to have regard to Cabinet’s scheduled programme of work.  For this purpose a copy 
of the Cabinet’s forward work programme is attached at Appendix 3.  

Progress on Committee Resolutions  

4.9 A table summarising recent Committee resolutions and advising members on 
progress with their implementation is attached at Appendix 4 to this report.   

  

Page 110



5. Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group 

 Under the Council’s scrutiny arrangements the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs 
Group (SCVCG) performs the role of a coordinating committee.  The Group met on 
31 January 2019.  At that meeting the Group asked this Committee, in order to 
relieve pressure on Communities Scrutiny Committee’s forward work programme, to 
consider the Street Naming and Numbering item which features on the current 
meeting’s business agenda.  It also asked the Committee to schedule into its forward 
work programme an item on the ‘Commercial Waste Service’s Evaluation Plan’ for 
early spring 2020 (see Appendix 1).  The Group’s next scheduled meeting is on 25 
April 2019.  

  6. How does the decision contribute to the Corporate Priorities? 

Effective scrutiny will assist the Council to deliver its corporate priorities in line with 
community needs and residents’ wishes.  Continual development and review of a 
coordinated work programme will assist the Council to deliver its corporate priorities, 
improve outcomes for residents whilst also managing austere budget cuts. 

7. What will it cost and how will it affect other services? 

Services may need to allocate officer time to assist the Committee with the activities 
identified in the forward work programme, and with any actions that may result 
following consideration of those items. 

8. What are the main conclusions of the Well-being Impact Assessment? The 
completed Well-being Impact Assessment report can be downloaded from the 
website and should be attached as an appendix to the report 

 
A Well-being Impact Assessment has not been undertaken in relation to the purpose 
or contents of this report.  However, Scrutiny’s through it work in examining service 
delivery, policies, procedures and proposals will consider their impact or potential 
impact on the sustainable development principle and the well-being goals stipulated in 
the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015. 
 

9. What consultations have been carried out with Scrutiny and others? 
 

None required for this report.  However, the report itself and the consideration of the 
forward work programme represent a consultation process with the Committee with 
respect to its programme of future work. 

 
10. What risks are there and is there anything we can do to reduce them? 

 No risks have been identified with respect to the consideration of the Committee’s 
forward work programme.  However, by regularly reviewing its forward work 
programme the Committee can ensure that areas of risk are considered and 
examined as and when they are identified, and recommendations are made with a 
view to addressing those risks. 

11. Power to make the decision 

Section 7.11 of the Council’s Constitution stipulates that scrutiny committees and/or 
the Scrutiny Chairs and Vice-Chairs Group will be responsible for setting their own 

Page 111

http://wellbeing.denbighshire.gov.uk/


work programmes, taking into account the wishes of Members of the Committee who 
are not members of the largest political group on the Council. 

 

Contact Officer:   
Scrutiny Coordinator 
Tel No: (01824) 712554   
e-mail: rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk  

Page 112

mailto:rhian.evans@denbighshire.gov.uk


 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 1 

 
Note: Any items entered in italics have not been approved for inclusion at the meeting shown by the Committee. Such reports are listed here for 
information, pending formal approval. 

 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

        

2 May Cllr. Julian 
Thompson
-Hill 

1. Corporate Risk 
Register 

To consider the latest version of 
the Council’s Corporate Risk 
Register 

Effective monitoring and 
management of identified risk 
to reduce risks to residents 
and the Authority 

Alan 
Smith/Nicola 
Kneale/Emma 
Horan 

May 
2018 

        

13 June Cllr. 
Bobby 
Feeley 

1. Draft Director of Social 
Services Annual 
Report for 2018/19 

To scrutinise the content of the 
draft annual report to ensure it 
provides a fair and clear 
evaluation of performance in 
2018/19 and clearly articulates 
future plans 

Identification of any specific 
performance issues which 
require further scrutiny by the 
committee in future 

Nicola 
Stubbins 

May 
2018) 

  2. The effectiveness of 
Well-being Impact 
Assessments (WIA) 

To consider an approach towards 
evaluating the effectiveness of the 
Council’s WIAs 

To an agree an approach to 
be used across the Council 
for evaluating and 
challenging WIAs, which will 
should realise better, more 
holistic, decision making 

Emma Horan By 
SCVCG 
June 
2018 
(resched
uled by 
the 
Committ
ee Nov 
2018) 

        

18 July Cllr. Julian 
Thompson
-Hill 

1. Corporate Plan (Q4) 
2017/2022 

To monitor the Council’s progress 
in delivering the  Corporate Plan 
2017-22  

Ensuring that the Council 
meets its targets to deliver its 
Corporate Plan and the 
Council’s services in line with 
its aspirations and to the 
satisfaction of local residents 

Alan 
Smith/Nicola 
Kneale/Heidi 
Barton-Price 

May 
2018 

 Cllr. 
Bobby 
Feeley 

2. Draft Director of Social 
Services Annual 
Report for 2018/19 

To scrutinise the content of the 
draft annual report to ensure it 
provides a fair and clear 
evaluation of performance in 

Identification of any specific 
performance issues which 
require further scrutiny by the 
committee in future 

Nicola 
Stubbins/Ann 
Lloyd 

July 
2018 

P
age 113



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 2 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

2018/19 and clearly articulates 
future plans 

        

26 Sept Cllr. Huw 
Hilditch-
Roberts  

1. Provisional External 
Examinations and 
Teacher Assessments  
[Education] 

To review the performance of 
schools and that of looked after 
children 

Scrutiny of performance 
leading to recommendations 
for improvement 

Karen 
Evans/Julian 
Molloy/GwE 

May 
2018 

 Cllr. 
Bobby 
Feeley 

2. Hafan Deg, Rhyl  
 
(12 months following 
the commencement of 
the contract) 
 
 

To monitor the effectiveness of 
the transfer of the facility and 
services to an external provider 
and the impact of the transfer on 
services-users, staff, local 
residents and the local community 
(including lessons learnt from the 
process) 

To evaluate the impact of the 
transfer of the facility and 
services on all stakeholders 
and to assess whether the 
services provided at Hafan 
Deg are in line with the 
contract specification, 
support the Council’s vision 
for adult social care and the 
five ways to well-being and 
the requirements of the 
Social Services and Well-
being (Wales) Act 2014 

Phil 
Gilroy/Katie 
Newe 

March 
2018 

 Cllr. 
Bobby 
Feeley 

3. Cefndy Healthcare 
Annual Report 
2018/19 and Annual 
Plan 2019/20 

To consider the company’s 
performance during 2018/19 and 
its Annual Plan for 2019/20 

An assessment of the 
company’s performance in 
delivering its business within 
budget and meeting targets 
will assist with the 
identification of future trends 
and requirements and 
support the delivery of the 
Council’s priority relating to 
Resilient Communities 

Phil 
Gilroy/Simon 
Rowlands/Nick 
Bowles 

July 
2018 

        

28 Nov Cllr. Julian 
Thompson
-Hill 

1. Corporate Risk 
Register 

To consider the latest version of 
the Council’s Corporate Risk 
Register 

Effective monitoring and 
management of identified risk 
to reduce risks to residents 
and the Authority 

Alan 
Smith/Nicola 
Kneale/Emma 
Horan 

May 
2018 

P
age 114



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 3 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

 Cllr. Julian 
Thompson
-Hill 

2. Corporate Plan (Q2) 
2017/2022 

To monitor the Council’s progress 
in delivering the  Corporate Plan 
2017-22  

Ensuring that the Council 
meets its targets to deliver its 
Corporate Plan and the 
Council’s services in line with 
its aspirations and to the 
satisfaction of local residents 

Alan 
Smith/Nicola 
Kneale/Heidi 
Barton-Price 

February 
2017 

 Cllr. 
Richard 
Mainon 

3. Customer Relationship 
Manager (CRM) 
System 
 
(provisionally 
scheduled – tbc) 

To review the implementation of 
the new CRM system and its 
performance in delivering efficient 
and effective customer focussed 
services in line with the product 
specification and the Council’s 
expectations 

An efficient and effective 
customer enquiries system 
that deals with enquiries 
quickly, to a high level of 
customer satisfaction, whilst 
realising value for money for 
the Authority  

Liz 
Grieve/Ffion 
Angharad 

Septemb
er 2018 

 Cllr. 
Richard 
Mainon 

4. Library Service 
Standards 2018-19 
and draft Library 
Service Strategy 

To: 
(i) consider the results of the 

WG’s annual evaluation of the 
Council’s Library Service; and  

(ii) examine the new draft 
Strategy for the Service  

(i) Identification of any 
slippages in performance 
in order to formulate 
recommendations to 
redress the situation. 

(ii) Input into the new Library 
Service Strategy to 
ensure that it delivers the 
Council’s Corporate Plan 
and its priorities in 
relation to Young People, 
Resilient and Connected 
Communities 

Liz 
Grieve/Bethan 
Hughes 

January 
2019 

        

Jan 2020 Cllr. Huw 
Hilditch-
Roberts 

1. Verified External 
Examinations  
[Education] 

To review the performance of 
schools and that of looked after 
children; and GwE’s impact on the 
educational attainment of the 
County’s pupils. 
 
The report to include actual 
figures in addition to percentages 
along with school absenteeism 
and exclusion data. 

Scrutiny of performance 
leading to recommendations 
for improvement 

Karen 
Evans/Julian 
Molloy/GwE 

January 
2019 

P
age 115



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 4 

Meeting Lead 
Member(s) 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

 
The report to incorporate GwE’s 
Annual report and information on 
the 5 year trend in relation to 
educational attainment in 
Denbighshire 

 Cllr. Brian 
Jones 

2. Draft Sustainable 
Travel Plan 
 

To consider the draft sustainable 
travel plan (including the Council’s 
role in facilitating the locating of 
vehicle charging points across the 
county, its work with other local 
authorities and stakeholders with 
respect of their availability and in 
relation to other potential 
alternative travel modes, and in 
supporting the community to 
switch to sustainable fuels)   

To provide observations and 
recommendations that will 
support the delivery of the 
corporate priorities relating to 
the environment and 
connected communities by 
reducing CO2 emissions and 
improving travel connectivity  

Emlyn 
Jones/Mike 
Jones 

By 
SCVCG 
June 
2018 
(resched
uled 
February 
2019) 

        

Feb/Mar        

        

March/April Cllr. Brian 
Jones 

1. Commercial Waste 
Service Evaluation 
Plan 

To consider an the results of an 
evaluation exercise of the entire 
commercial waste service, 
including the performance of the 
Veolia contract and Waste 
Technical Team (including 
proposals for service changes 
and improvements) 

Assurances that the Service 
is performing well and 
provides value for money in 
order to ensure that it aligns 
to the new waste operating 
model  

Tony 
Ward/Tara 
Dumas/Alan 
Roberts 

By 
SCVCG 
January 
2019 

 
  

P
age 116



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 5 

Future Issues 
 

Item (description / title) Purpose of report Expected Outcomes Author Date 
Entered 

Dolwen Residential Care Home To consider the Task and Finish Group’s 
recommendations relating to the future 
provision of services at Dolwen 
Residential Care Home, Denbigh 

Pre-decision scrutiny of the task 
and finish group’s findings and the 
formulation of recommendations 
for presentation to Cabinet with 
respect of the future provision of 
services at Dolwen with a view to 
ensuring that everyone is 
supported to live in homes that 
meet their needs and are able to 
live independent and resilient lives  

Task and Finish 
Group/Phil 
Gilroy/Abbe 
Harvey 

July 2018 

School Improvement Plans 
 
[Education] 

To discuss with representatives of 
particular schools their progress in 
achieving their improvement plans 

Provision of support to the schools 
to ensure they deliver their plans 
and improve outcomes for their 
pupils and the school as a whole 

Karen 
Evans/Julian 
Molloy 

February 
2018 

Implementation of the Donaldson 
Report ‘Successful Futures’ – 
Independent Review of Curriculum 
and Assessment Arrangements in 
Wales  
[Education] 
 
Dependent upon the legislative 
timetable  

To consider and monitor the plans to 
implement the agreed measures adopted 
by WG following the consultation on the 
review’s findings  

Better outcomes for learners to 
equip them with jobs market skills 

Karen Evans April 2015 

 
 
 
Information/Consultation Reports 
 

Date Item (description / title) Purpose of report Author Date 
Entered 

March 2019 & 
September 2019 
 
[Information] 

Corporate Plan 2017/22 (Q3) 2018/19 
 
&  
 

Ensuring that the Council meets its targets and 
delivers its Corporate Plan and the Council’s 
services in line with its aspirations and to the 
satisfaction of local residents 

Alan Smith/Nicola 
Kneale/Heidi 
Barton-Price 

September 
2018 

P
age 117



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 6 

Corporate Plan 2017/22 Q1 2019/20 
To monitor the Council’s progress in 
delivering the  Corporate Plan  

Feb/May/Sept/November 
2019 
 
[Information] 

Quarterly ‘Your Voice’ complaints 
performance to include social services 
complaints  

To scrutinise Services’ performance in 
complying with the Council’s complaints and 
identify areas of poor performance with a view 
to the development of recommendations to 
address weaknesses.  The report to include: 
(i) a comprehensive explanation on why 

targets have not been met when dealing 
with specific complaints, reasons for non-
compliance, and measures taken to rectify 
the failures and to ensure that future 
complaints will be dealt with within the 
specified timeframe;  

(ii) how services encourage feedback and use 
it to redesign or change the way they deliver 
services; and 

(iii)details of complaints which have been 
upheld or partially upheld and the lessons 
learnt from them. 

 
Consideration of the information provided 
will assist the Committee to determine 
whether any issues merit detailed scrutiny 

Kevin Roberts/Ann 
Lloyd/Phil Gilroy 

November 
2018 

Information Report  
 
(6 monthly March & 
September) 

Customer Effort Dashboard To monitor the progress achieved in relation to 
developing the Customer Effort Dashboard.  
The feedback trend received from the system 
and how it is used to benefit residents in 
relation to assisting them to easily access 
required services and consequently improving 
the customer satisfaction experience of the 
Council 
 
Consideration of the information provided 
will assist the Committee to determine 
whether any issues merit detailed scrutiny 

Liz Grieve/Ffion 
Angharad 

 

 
 

P
age 118



 Performance Scrutiny Committee Forward Work Plan    Appendix 1 

 7 

 
Note for officers – Committee Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

2 May 18 April 13 June 30 May 18 July 4 July 

 
Performance Scrutiny Work Programme.doc 
Updated 08/03/19 RhE 

P
age 119



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Appendix 2 

Member Proposal Form for Scrutiny Forward Work Programme 
 

 
NAME OF SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

 

 
TIMESCALE FOR CONSIDERATION 
 

 

 
TOPIC 
 

 

 
What needs to be scrutinised (and why)? 
 

 
 
 

 
Is the matter one of concern to 
residents/local businesses? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Can Scrutiny influence and change 
things?  
(if ‘yes’ please state how you think scrutiny 
can influence or change things) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

 
Does the matter relate to an 
underperforming service or area? 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
Does the matter affect a large number of 
residents or a large geographical area of 
the County  
(if ‘yes’ please give an indication of the size 
of the affected group or area) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 
 
 

Is the matter linked to the Council’s 
Corporate priorities 
(if ‘yes’ please state which priority/priorities) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

To your knowledge is anyone else 
looking at this matter? 
(If ‘yes’, please say who is looking at it) 
 

 
YES/NO 

 

If the topic is accepted for scrutiny who 
would you want to invite to attend e.g. 
Lead Member, officers, external experts, 
service-users? 

 

 
Name of Councillor/Co-opted Member 
 

 

 
Date 

 

Page 121



 

Consideration of a topic’s suitability for scrutiny 

 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 

 

 

 

 

NO  (no further action or information report) 

 

 

Proposal Form/Request received 

(careful consideration given to reasons for request) 

Does it stand up to the PAPER test? 

 Public interest – is the matter of concern to residents? 

 Ability to have an impact – can Scrutiny influence and change 

things? 

 Performance – is it an underperforming area or service? 

 Extent – does it affect a large number of residents or a large 

geographic area? 

 Replication – is anyone else looking at it? 

 

No further action required by 

scrutiny committee.  Refer 

elsewhere or request 

information report?   

 Determine the desired outcome(s) 

 Decide on the scope and extent of the scrutiny work required and the most 

appropriate method to undertake it (i.e. committee report, task and finish group 

inquiry, or link member etc.) 

 If task and finish route chosen, determine the timescale for any inquiry, who will 

be involved, research requirements, expert advice and witnesses required, 

reporting arrangements etc. 

YES 

NO 

Page 122



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 

26 Mar 2019 1 Gypsy and Traveller 
Accommodation 

To consider the outcome of 
the consultation exercise 
relating to the proposals to 
seek planning permission for 
Gypsy and Traveller sites 

Yes Councillor Tony Thomas / 
Nicola Stubbins / David Lorey 

 2 Denbighshire’s Replacement 
Local Development Plan – Draft 
Pre Deposit (preferred strategy) 
for consultation.  

To consider a 
recommendation to Council. 
 

Tbc Councillor Brian Jones / 
Angela Loftus 

 3 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 4 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 

30 Apr 2019 1 Proposed Alternative Delivery 
Model (ADM) for various leisure 
related activities and functions 

See description. Yes Councillors Bobby Feeley and 
Julian Thompson-Hill / 
Graham Boase / Sian Lloyd 
Price 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

P
age 123



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 

28 May 2019 1 North Wales Growth Bid 
Governance Agreement 2 

To approve the governance 
arrangements in relation to 
the implementation of the 
growth deal. 

Yes Councillor Hugh Evans / 
Graham Boase / Gary 
Williams 

 2 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 3 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

 

25 Jun 2019 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

P
age 124



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

30 July 2019 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To consider any issues 
raised by Scrutiny for 
Cabinet’s attention 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

24 Sep 2019 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

22 Oct 2019 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

P
age 125



Appendix 3 
Cabinet Forward Work Plan   

Meeting Item (description / title) Purpose of report Cabinet 
Decision 
required 
(yes/no) 

Author – Lead member and 
contact officer 

19 Nov 2019 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

17 Dec 2019 1 Finance Report To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Councillor Julian Thompson-
Hill / Richard Weigh 

 2 Items from Scrutiny Committees To update Cabinet on the 
current financial position of 
the Council 

Tbc Scrutiny Coordinator 

      

 

Note for officers – Cabinet Report Deadlines 
 

Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline Meeting Deadline 

      

March 12 March April 12 April May 13 May 
 
Updated 01/03/19 - KEJ 
 
Cabinet Forward Work Programme.doc 

P
age 126



Appendix 4 
Progress with Committee Resolutions 

 

Date of 
Meeting 

Item number and 
title 

Resolution  Progress 

31 January 
2019 

5 5.  VERIFIED 
EXTERNAL 
EXAMINATION 
RESUTLS AND 
TEACHER 
ASSESSMENTS 

Resolved: - subject to the above observations – 
(i) to acknowledge the performance of the County’s 

schools in the 2018 external examinations and to 
congratulate the pupils on their achievement; 

(ii) to receive and agree the areas for improvement as 
outlined in the report;  

(iii) that the Chair on behalf of the Committee write again 
to the Chief Executive of Qualifications Wales 
emphasising members’ continuing concerns relating 
to the significant increase in the ‘C’ grade threshold 
for the summer 2018 GCSE examinations and its 
consequential impact on pupils, their potential career 
prospects, Education Service and school staff, and 
schools in general; and  

(iv) that a copy of the above letter be sent to all North 
Wales Assembly Members, and the local press and 
media. 

Lead Member and Council 
and GwE officers informed of 
the Committee’s 
recommendations. 
 
 
 
 
The Chair wrote again to the 
Chief Executive of 
Qualifications Wales on 13 
February, as requested by 
the Committee.  His letter 
was copied to all AMs in 
North Wales and to the local 
press and media. 

 6 6.  LIBRARY 
STANDARDS 

Resolved: - subject to the above observations –  
(i) to commend the Library Service on its performance 

against the Sixth Framework of the Welsh Public 
Library Standards; and 

(ii) that a report on the Service’s performance against 
the Welsh Public Library Service Standards 2018-19 
along with the draft new Library Service Strategy be 

Lead Member and officers 
advised of the Committee’s 
observations and a report on 
the Service’s performance 
during 2018-19 along with 
the draft strategy for the 
Service has been scheduled 

P
age 127



presentenced to the Committee at its meeting in 
November 2019  

into the Committee’s forward 
work programme for its 
meeting in November 2019 
(see Appendix 1) 

 7 7.  WAO 
NATIONAL 
REPORT ON 
WASTE 
MANAGEMENT 
IN WALES 

Resolved: having considered the findings of the Wales Audit 
Office report on Waste Management in Wales:  Municipal 
Recycling to endorse the Council’s Waste and Recycling 
Service’s response to address the issues raised in the report. 

Lead Member and officers 
advised of the Committee’s 
observations 

 

P
age 128


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF THE LAST MEETING
	5 HOUSING SERVICES
	Housing Services WAO Review Report 210319 - App 1
	Housing Services WAO Review Report 210319 - App 2
	Housing Services WAO Review Report 210319 - App 3
	Housing Services WAO Review Report 210319 - App 4
	Housing Services WAO Review Report 210319 - App 5

	6 DRAFT FLEET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY
	Draft Fleet Strategy Report 210319 - App 1
	Draft Fleet Strategy Report 210319 - App 2
	FLEET STRATEGY (DRAFT)
	Well-being Impact Assessment Report
	IMPACT ASSESSMENT SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
	Score for the sustainability of the approach
	Implications of the score
	Summary of impact
	Main conclusions
	Evidence to support the Well-being Impact Assessment

	THE LIKELY IMPACT ON DENBIGHSHIRE, WALES AND THE WORLD
	A prosperous Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A resilient Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A healthier Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A more equal Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of cohesive communities
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A Denbighshire of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:

	A globally responsible Denbighshire
	Positive impacts identified:
	Negative impacts identified:





	7 STREET NAMING AND NUMBERING POLICY
	Street Naming and Numbering Policy Report 210319 - App 1
	Final SNN Policy (Welsh) August 2018
	Final SNN Policy - August 2018


	8 SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME
	Performance Scrutiny Committee Work Programme - App 1[1]
	Work Programme Report - App 2E
	Work Programme Report - App 3
	Work Programme Report - App 4


